UNICREDIT BULBANK AD

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Shareholders of
UniCredit Bulbank AD

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of UniCredit Bulbank AD
(“the Bank™), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2010, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes,
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted
by the European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting principles used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2010, and of its consolidated

financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Annual report of the activities of the Bank prepared in accordance with the requirements of
article 33 of the Accountancy Act

As required under the Accountancy Act, we report that the consolidated historical financial
information disclosed in the annual report of the activities of the Bank, prepared by
Management as required under article 33 of the Accountancy Act, is consistent, in all material
aspects, with the consolidated financial information disclosed in the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Bank as of and for the year ended 31 December 2010. Management
is responsible for the preparation of the annual report of the activities of the Bank which was
approved by the Management Board of the Bank on 18 February 2011.

Tzvetelinka Kolev \ Margarita Goleva / qy
Authorized Represenative Registered auditor :// /'L/(

KPMG Bulgaria OOD
Sofia, 23 February 201
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INCOME STATEMENT
In thousands of BGN
Notes 2010 2009
Interest income 634,760 652,373
Interest expense (205,811) (242,579)
Net interest income 7 428,949 409,794
Dividend income 133 134
Fee and commission income 164,584 158,878
Fee and commission expense (9,050) (8,755)
Net fee and commission income 8 155,534 150,123
Net gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading 9 856 3,243
Net gains (losses) on other financial assets designated at fair value 10 5819 65
through profit or loss :
Net income from investments 11 9,986 2,169
Net income related to subsidiaries, associates and property, plant 12 6.977 5.617
and equipment
Other operating income, net 13 5,962 6,895
TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 614,216 578,040
Personnel expenses 14 (96,925) (97,781)
General and administrative expenses 15 (112,508) (113,691)
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on tangible and
intangible fixed assets, investment properties and assets held for sale 16 (36,377) (35,087)
Provisions for risk and charges 17 1,957 18,885
Net impairment loss on financial assets 18 (185,639) (130,146)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 184,724 220,220
Income tax expense 19 (18,019) (22,823)
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 166,705 197,397

vor/Hampartzoumian . : Emilid Palibachiyska
Chairman of the Management Epu ,.-' nan of the Member of the
Board and Chief Executive afiggerpent Bogrd and Management Board and
Officer | ief Op€rafive/Officer Chief Financial Officer
7!
KPMG Bulgaria OOD i /
Tzvetelinka Koleva Margarita Goleva
Authorized representative |\’ Registered auditor
The acoompanyi g " s To an integ a part of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

In thousands of BGN
Notes 2010 2009
Profit for the period 166,705 197,397
Other comprehensive income:
Available for sale investments 6,876 10,422
Cash flow hedge (4,299) 1,757
Revaluation of non current assets 30 - 63,960
!noome tax relating to components of other comprehensive (259) (7.615)
income
Other distribution (77) (4,076)
Total other comprehensive income for the year net of tax 2,241 64,448
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 168,946 261,845

&

Emilia Palibachiyska
Member of the
Management Board and
Chief Financial Officer

7
./«:f/j'/

Maréarita Goleva
Registered auditor

Levon Hampartzoumian
Chairman of the Management

Officer

KPMG Bulgaria OOD

Tzvetelinka Koleva
Authorized representativi

\[[ °

rt of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

In thousands of BGN
Notes 2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Bank 20 874,660 832,164
Financial assets held for trading 21 162,160 115,450
Derivatives held for trading 22 56,250 45,142
Derivatives used for hedging 23 - 1,521
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 24 110,545 136,071
Loans and advances to banks 25 1,699,214 2,071,567
Loans and advances to customers 26 7,533,400 7,378,678
Available for sale investments 27 278,732 285,485
Held to maturity investments 28 291,382 314,749
Investments in associates 29 29,218 22511
Property, plant, equipment and investment properties 30 241,765 247,022
Intangible assets 31 31,097 34,866
Current tax assets 32 3,471 9,796
Deferred tax assets 33 6,321 6,696
Non-current assets and disposal group classified as held for sale 34 21 2,236
Other assets 35 22,597 19,775
TOTAL ASSETS 11,340,833 11,523,729
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities held for trading 36 62,317 40,211
Derivatives used for hedging 23 4,527 6
Deposits from banks 37 2,610,171 3,114,002
Deposits from customers 38 6,535,848 6,413,097
Subordinated liabilities 39 214,053 212,123
Provisions 40 34,266 36,564
Current tax liabilities 32 80 27
Deferred tax liabilities 33 20,193 21,041
Other liabilities 41 66,051 46,524
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,547,506 9,883,595
EQUITY
Share capital 263,911 239,256
Revaluation reserves 132,073 130,109
Retained earnings 1,230,638 1,073,372
Profit for the period 166,705 197,397
TOTAL EQUITY 4 42 1,793,327 1,640,134
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY T 11,340,833 11,523,729

s Fwp—" | =

Y Levon Hampartzgumian Emilia Palibachiyska
Chairman of the Management Member of the

e Management Board and
Chief Financial Officer

/
/7
w1/
Margarita Goleva
Registered auditor

Tzvetelinka Koleva
Authorized representativ

The accompanying afFpart of these financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

In thousands of BGN
Share Statutory Retained Property Available Cash Total
capital reserve earnings revaluation for sale flow
reserve investments hedges
revaluation reserves
reserve
Balance as of January 1, 2009 239,256 51,155 1,025,946 88,004 (26,072) - 1,378,289
Profit for the period - - 197,397 - - - 197,397
Revaluation of non current assets - - - 63,960 - - 63,960
Transfer of revaluation reserve on non-
current assets disposed of ) B 347 (347) . . :
Change of revaluation reserve on
available for sale investments . ) . : 10,422 - 10422
Change of revaluation reserve on cash
flow hedges reserves . ) . . - L7 1,757
Other distribution - B (4,076) - - - (4,076)
Income tax relating to components of ) } )
other comprehensive income (6,397 (1.042) (176) (7,618
Total other comprehensive income
for the year net of tax - - (3,729) 57,216 9,380 1,581 64,448
Total comprehensive income for the
year net of tax - - 193,668 57,216 9,380 1,581 261,845
Balance as of December 31, 2009 239,256 51,155 1,219,614 145,220 (16,692) 1,581 1,640,134
Profit for the period - - 166,705 - - - 166,705
Transfer of revaluation reserve on non-
current assets disposed of ) . s (354) : . .
Change of revaluation reserve on
available for sale investments ) . . . 6,876 - 6,876
Change of revaluation reserve on cash
flow hedges reserves - ¥ = £ - (4,299) (4,299)
Other distribution - - () - - 2 (77
Income tax relating to components of ) B ) )
other comprehensive income (668) 429 (259)
Total other comprehensive income
for the year net of tax - - 277 (354) 6,188 (3,870) 2,241
Total comprehensive income for the
year net of tax - - 166,982 (354) 6,188 (3,870) 168,946
Dividends paid - - (194,753) - - - (194,753)
Increase of capital 24655 154,345 - E - - 179,000
Balance as of December 31, 2010 263,911 205,500 1,191,893 144,866 (10,504) (2,289) 1,793,327

e

Levon Hampartzoumian

Chairman of the Management

Board and Chief Executive
Officer

KPMG Bulgaria OOD

Tzvetelinka Koleva
Authorized representative

Emilia Palibachiyska

Member of the
Management Board and

Chief Financial Officer

//,
N
e

Margarita Goleva
Registered auditor

of these financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
In thousands of BGN
Notes 20
Net profit 166,705 197,397
Current and deferred tax income, recognised in income statement (4,388) (3,176)
Current and deferred tax expenses, recognised in income statement 22,407 25,999
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation 30,31 33,954 32,726
Impairment 16,18,30,31 188,380 134,510
Provisions, net (1,398) (18,885)
Unrealised fair value gains (losses) through profit or loss, net (2,617) 3,667
Net (gains)/losses on sale of investments (6,977) (4,272)
Increase in other accruals 18,808 20,790
Cash flows from profits before changes in operating assets and liabilities 414,874 388,756
Operating activities
Change in operating assets
Decrease (increase) in loans and advances 10 banks 105,159  (24,383)
Increase in loans and advances to customers (340,679) (271,934)
Decrease in available for sale investments 22,349 82,391
Decrease (increase) in financial instruments held for trading (38,994) (22,279)
Decrease in financial instruments at fair value trough profit or loss 21,943 47,755
Increase in other assets (15,074) (12,112)
Change in operating liabilities:
Increase (decrease) in deposits from banks (501,901) (113,726)
Increase (decrease) in amounts owed to customers 122,751 388,591
Provisions utilization (900) (1,801)
Decrease in other liabilities 613 (47,051)
Net cash flow from operating activities (209,859) 414,207
Cash flow from investing activities
Cash payments to acquire tangible assets (19,295) (19,807)
Cash receipt from sale of tangible assets 1,074 8,939
Cash payments to acquire intangible assets (6,660) (7,884)
Cash receipt from sale of intangible assets - 69
Cash payments for the investment in associates - (12,952)
Cash receipts from the sale of held to maturity investments 23,367 41,253
Net cash flow from investing activities (1,514) 9,618
Cash flow from financial activities
Dividends paid (194,753) -
Capital increase 179,000 -
Other cash payments related to financing activities (77) (402)
Net cash flows from financial activities (15,830) (402)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 2,505 4
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 224,698 423,427
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 46 2,797,876 2,374,449
Cash and fash equivalents at the end of period 46 2,573,178 2,797,876

/4

S

Levon Hampaftzoumian ;
Chairman of the Management alpmaprof the

Board and Chief Exagcuti Managepiefit Pogrd and
Officer = ErafiveOfficer
KPMG Bulgaria OOD \\

Emilia Palibachiyska
Member of the
Management Board and
Chief Financial Officer

Y, i g
Tzvetelinka Koleva Margarita Goleva
Authorized representativ Registered auditor
& ;
The accompa " 1otes i al parf of these financial statements




. . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
l Unlcredlt BUIbank STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Reporting entity

UniCredit Bulbank AD (the Bank) is a universal Bulgarian bank established upon triple legal merger of
Bulbank AD, HVB Bank Biochim AD and Hebros Bank AD on April 27", 2007. These consolidated
financial statements comprise of UniCredit Bulbank AD and its subsidiaries and associates (hereafter
together referred as UniCredit Bulbank AD or the Bank).

UniCredit Bulbank AD possesses a full-scope banking licence for performing commercial banking
activities. It is domiciled in the Republic of Bulgaria with registered address Sofia, 7 “Sveta Nedelya” sq.
The Bank is primarily involved in corporate and retail banking and in providing asset management
services.

The Bank operates through its network comprising of 216 branches and offices.
Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by International Accounting standards Board (IASB) and
adopted by European Commission.

These financial statements have been prepared on consolidated basis as required by Bulgarian
Accountancy Act. They are approved by the Management Board of the Bank on February 18, 2011.
Whenever deemed necessary for comparison reasons, certain positions in prior year financial
statements have been reclassified.

Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for:
= derivative financial instruments measured at fair value;

= trading instruments and other instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
measured at fair value, where such can be reliably determined;

= available for sale financial instruments measured at fair value, where such can be
reliably determined;

= investments in property measured at revalued amount based on independent
appraiser’s valuation;

= liability for defined benefit obligation presented as fair value of defined benefit obligation
plus unrecognized actuarial gains and less unrecognized actuarial losses.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Bulgarian Lev (BGN) rounded to the nearest
thousand. Bulgarian Lev is the functional and reporting currency of UniCredit Bulbank AD.

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements requires Management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.



. . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
l Unlcredlt BUlbank STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

(d)

(a)

Basis of preparation (continued)
Use of estimates and judgement (continued)

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements are described in notes 4 and 5.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements. Whenever certain information in the current period is presented in a different way
for providing more fair and true view of the financial position of the Bank, prior period information is also
recalculated for comparative reasons.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with IAS 27 “Separate and
Consolidated Financial Statements” whereas all participations in single entities where UniCredit
Bulbank AD exercise control by holding more than 50% of the voting rights in the investees are
consolidated applying full consolidation method and all participations in single entities where UniCredit
Bulbank AD exercise significant influence by holding more than 20% of the voting rights in the investees
are consolidated applying equity method.

Intra-group balances, and income and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction gains or
losses) arising from intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment. For more detailed information on applying equity method
on associates see also note 29.

Compan Participation Consolidation

pany in equity method
UniCredit Factoring EAD 100.0% Full consolidation
Hypovereins Immobilien EOOD 100.0% Full consolidation
UniCredit Consumer Financing AD 49.9% Equity method
UniCredit Leasing AD 24.4% Equity method
Cash Service Company AD 20.0% Equity method
Pirelli Real Estate Bulgaria AD (in liquidation) 25.0% Equity method
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the Income statement following the accruing principle,
taking into account the effective yield of the asset/liability in all material aspects. Interest income and
expenses include the amortization of any discount or premium or other differences between the initial
carrying amount of an interest bearing instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective
interest rate basis.

Interest income and expense presented in the Income statement include:

= interest on financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost calculated on an effective
interest basis;

= interest on available for sale investment securities calculated on an effective
interest basis;

= interest on financial instruments held for trading;

= interest on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss;

= interest on derivatives designated as effective hedging instruments.

Fee and commission income and expenses

Fee and commission income and expense arise on financial services provided/received and are
recognized upon rendering/receiving of the corresponding service.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial
asset or liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate thus presented as interest
income or expense.

Net gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading

Net gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading includes those gains and losses
arising from disposals and changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities held for trading as
well as trading income in dealing with foreign currencies and exchange differences from daily
revaluation of the net open foreign currency position of the Bank.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currency at the official
Bulgarian National Bank foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. All monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing foreign exchange rate
being the official rate of the Bulgarian National Bank. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies, which are stated at historical cost, are translated at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction.
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(e)

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

Significant accounting policy (continued)
Foreign currency transactions (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates that the values
were determined. As of each reporting date, all foreign currencies denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are revaluated on net basis using Bulgarian National Bank closing exchange rates. Any
gain/loss is recognized in the profit or loss.

Net gains (losses) on other financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Net gains (losses) on other financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss include all
realised and unrealised fair value changes and foreign exchange differences on assets which are
managed on fair value basis and for which the Bank has applied “fair value option” upon initial
recognition.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities.

Lease payments made

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expense, over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the
lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Financial instruments
(i) Recognition

The Bank initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date at which they are originated. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date at which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset. All other
financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss) are initially recognised on the trade date at which the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus (for an item not subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition cost.
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3.
(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Classification

a) Cash and balances with the Central Bank

Cash and balances with the Central bank include notes and coins on hand and unrestricted
balances held with the Central Bank. They are carried at amortised cost in the statement of
financial position.

b) Financial assets and derivatives held for trading

Financial assets and derivatives held for trading are those that the Bank holds for the
purpose of short-term profit taking. These include securities and derivative contracts that
are not designated as effective hedging instruments, and liabilities from short sales of
financial instruments. All derivatives in a net receivable position (positive fair value) and
purchased options are reported separately as derivatives held for trading. All derivatives in
a net payable position (negative fair value) and written options are reported as financial
liabilities held for trading.

Financial assets and derivatives held for trading are carried at fair value in the statement of
financial position.

c) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial instruments that are not held for trading but which are part of a group of financial
assets which performance is internally evaluated and reported on a fair value basis are
initially designated and subsequently reported as financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are carried at fair value in the
statement of financial position.

d) Loans and advances to banks and customers

Loans and advances to banks and customers are instruments where the Bank provides
money to a debtor other than those created with the intention of short-term profit taking or
selling in the near term.

Loans and advances are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction
costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

e) Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivative investments that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified in another category of financial assets. Unquoted
equity securities whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost. All other
available for sale investments are carried at fair value.

Fair value changes are recognised directly in equity until the investment is sold or impaired,

whereupon the cumulative gains and losses previously recognised in equity are recognised
in profit or loss.

10
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3.
(i)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Classification (continued)

f) Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity that the Bank has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, and
which are not designated as at fair value through profit or loss or as available for sale.

A sale or reclassification of a more than insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments
would result in the reclassification of all held-to-maturity investments as available for sale,
and would prevent the Bank from classifying investment securities as held to maturity for
the current and the following two financial years. However, sales and reclassifications in
any of the following circumstances would not trigger a reclassification:

= sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity that changes in the
market rate of interest would not have a significant effect on the financial
asset’s fair value;

= sales or reclassifications after Bank has collected substantially all of the
asset’s original principal;
= sales or reclassifications attributable to non-recurring isolated events

beyond the Bank’s control that could not have been reasonably anticipated
(such as material creditworthiness deterioration of the issuer).

Held to maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

g) Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries comprise of equity participations in entities where the Bank
exercises control through owning more than half of the voting power of such entities or
through virtue of an agreement with other investors to exercise more than half of the voting
rights.

Investments in associates comprise of equity participations in entities where the Bank does
not exercises control but have significant influence in governing the investees’ activities
through owing more than 20% of the voting power of such entities.

In the consolidated financial statements Bank has adopted the policy of carrying all
investments in associates at equity method accordance with IAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”.

h) Deposits from banks, customers and subordinated liabilities

Deposits from banks customers and subordinated liabilities are financial instruments related
to attracted funds by the Bank, payable on demand or upon certain maturity and bearing
agreed interest rate.

Subordinated liability meets some additional requirements set by Bulgarian National Bank
(see note 39).

Deposits from banks, customers and subordinated liabilities are carried at amortised cost
using effective interest rate method.

11
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
(iii) Reclassification

Bank does not reclassify financial instruments in or out of any classification category after initial
recognition.

(iv) Derecognition

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or when it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in
a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Bank is
recognised as a separate asset or liability.

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial
position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a
portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are retained, then the transferred assets are
not derecognised from the statement of financial position. Transfers of assets with retention of all or
substantially all risks and rewards include, for example, securities lending and repurchase transactions.
In transactions in which the Bank neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset, it derecognises the asset if it does not retain control over the asset. The
rights and obligations retained in the transfer are recognised separately as assets and liabilities as
appropriate. In transfers in which, control over the asset is retained, the Bank continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to
changes in the value of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions the Bank retains the obligation to service the transferred financial asset for a fee.
The transferred asset is derecognised in its entirety if it meets the derecognition criteria. An asset or
liability is recognised for the servicing contract, depending on whether the servicing fee is more than
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) for performing the servicing.

(v) Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is
measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the
maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

(vi) Fair value measurement principles

Fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in arm’s length transaction on the reporting date. The Bank has
applied Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 7), issued in March
2009, that requires enhanced disclosures about fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments. The amendments require that fair value measurement disclosures use a three-level fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in measuring fair values of financial
instruments.

Level 1 fair value measurement covers those financial assets and liabilities which fair value is derived
directly from quoted prices on active markets. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis.

12
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1)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

(vi) Fair value measurement principles (continued)

Level 2 fair value measurement covers those financial assets and liabilities which fair value is derived
on the basis of observable market data (e.g. actual quotations and prices on markets regarded as non-
active, available yield curves etc.).

Level 3 fair value measurement covers those financial assets and liabilities for which relevant
observable data is not available, or when there is little to non market activity. For all such assets and
liabilities valuation technique is applied embodying all relevant market data available, reflecting the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the respective asset or liability, including
assumptions about risk. Level 3 also includes those financial assets, where fair value cannot be reliably
measured, therefore they are stated at cost or amortised cost.

(vi)  Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the
transactions are intended to be settled on a net basis.

(viii) Repurchase agreements

UniCredit Bulbank AD enters into purchases (sales) of financial instruments under agreements to resell
(repurchase) substantially identical investments at a certain date in the future at a fixed price.
Instruments purchased subject to commitments to resell them at future dates are not recognized. The
amounts paid are recognized in loans to either banks or customers. Financial instruments sold under
repurchase agreements continue to be recognized in the statement of financial position and measured
in accordance with the accounting policy. The proceeds from the sale of the investments are reported in
the statement of financial position under deposits from customers or banks, respectively. The difference
between the sale and repurchase consideration is recognised on an accrual basis over agreed term of
the deal and is included in net interest income.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of Bank’'s assets are regularly reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence for impairment as follows:

= for loans and receivables — by the end of each month for the purposes of preparing
interim financial statements reported;

= for available for sale and held to maturity financial assets — semi-annually based on
review performed the Bank and decision approved by ALCO;

= for non-financial assets — by the end of each year for the purposes of preparing
annual financial statements.

If any impairment indicators exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

13
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1)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment (continued)
(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an
allowance account against loans and advances. When a subsequent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Loans and advances to banks and customers are assessed for impairment indicators on a monthly
basis for the purposes of preparing monthly financial statements of the Bank. Review is performed and
decisions are taken by Bank’s Provisioning and Restructuring Committee which is a specialized internal
body for monitoring, valuation and classification of risk exposures. For consolidated subsidiaries
decisions are taken by respective management bodies. Loans and advances are presented net of
allocated allowances for impairment. Impairment allowances are made against the carrying amount of
loans and advances that are identified as being impaired based on regular reviews of outstanding
balances. Impairment allowances on portfolio basis are maintained to reduce the carrying amount of
portfolios of similar loans and receivables to their estimated recoverable amounts at the reporting date.
The expected cash flows for portfolios of similar assets are estimated based on previous experience,
late payments of interest, principals or penalties. Increases in the allowance account are recognized in
profit or loss. When a loan is known to be uncollectible, all the necessary legal procedures have been
completed, and the final loss has been determined, the loan is directly written off.

Assets classified as held to maturity are assessed for impairment on a semi-annual basis based on
available market data. Review is performed and decision is taken my Assets and Liabilities Committee
(ALCO) of the Bank.

If in a subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the write-down, the write-down or allowance is reversed through
profit or loss thus increasing the amortized cost to the amount that never exceeds the amortised cost
had the loan never been impaired.

(i) Financial assets remeasured to fair value directly in other comprehensive income

Financial assets remeasured to fair value directly through other comprehensive income are those
classified as available for sale financial investments.

Where an asset remeasured to fair value directly through other comprehensive income is impaired, and
a write down of the asset was previously recognized directly in other comprehensive income, the write-
down is transferred to profit or loss and recognized as part of the impairment loss.

Where an asset measured to fair value directly through other comprehensive income is impaired, and
an increase in the fair value of the asset was previously recognized in other comprehensive income, the
increase in fair value of the asset recognized in other comprehensive income is reversed to the extent
the asset is impaired. Any additional impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

If in subsequent periods the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the write-down, the write-down is reversed through profit or loss.

Assessment of impairment indicators of available for sale investments is done semi-annually. Decision
for existence of any impairment is taken by ALCO.

14
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(k)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Derivatives used for hedging

Derivatives used for hedging include all derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified as held for
trading. Derivatives used for hedging are designated as effective hedging instruments and are
measured at fair value in the statement of financial position.

In 2009 Bank has developed hedge accounting methodology aiming at effective management of interest
rate risk embedded in the banking book positions through certain fair value hedge and cash flow hedge
relationships.

In accordance with the approved methodology, upon initial designation of the hedge, the Bank formally
documents the relationship between the hedging instruments and the hedged items, including risk
management objective and strategy in undertaking the hedge, together with the method that will be
used to assess the effectiveness of the hedge relationship. Assessment is performed, both at the
inception of the hedge relationship as well as on ongoing basis, as to weather the hedging instruments
are expected to be “highly effective” in offsetting the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the
respective hedged items during the period for which the hedge is designated, and weather the actual
results of each hedge are within the range of 80-125 percent. The Bank also makes an assessment for
each cash flow hedge of a forecast transaction, as to weather the forecast transaction is highly probable
to occur and presents an exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect profit or loss.

Fair value hedge

When a derivate is designated as hedging instrument in a hedge of fair value of recognized asset or
liability that could affect profit or loss, changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognized
immediately in profit or loss together with the changes in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk.

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the
criteria for fair value hedge accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked, fair value hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. Any adjustment up to that point to a hedged item, for which
the effective interest method is used, is amortised to profit or loss as part of the recalculated effective
interest rate of the item over its remaining life. Amortisation starts immediately when hedge relationship
no longer exists.

Cash flow hedge

Bank designates derivatives as hedging instruments in hedge of the variability in cash flows attributable
to particular type of risk associated with highly probable forecast transaction that could ultimately affect
profit or loss. While the derivative is carried at fair value in the statement of financial position, the
effective portion of the changes of the fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income under
cash flow hedge reserve and the ineffective part is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

If the hedging derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the hedge no longer meets the
criteria for cash flow hedge accounting, or the hedge designation is revoked then the hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively.

As Bank’s hedging strategy covers forecast cash flows as hedged items, the cumulative amount,
recognized in other comprehensive income from the period when the hedge was effective, is amortised
in profit or loss when the forecast transactions occur. In case the forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the whole balance outstanding in other comprehensive income is reclassified in profit
or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and investment property

The Bank has adopted a policy to carry its items of property at revalued amount under the allowed
alternative approach in IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”.

Items of property are stated at fair value determined periodically (4 to 5 years or more often if material
deviations are encountered) by independent registered appraisers. Last full scope real estate property
valuation was performed as of December 31, 2009 by external independent appraisers.

When the property is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset. When the carrying amount of assets is increased as a
result of revaluation, the increase is credited directly to other comprehensive income as revaluation
surplus. When the carrying amount of assets is decreased as a result of revaluation, the decrease is
recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent that it reverses previously recognized
surpluses and the remaining part is recognized as expense in profit or loss.

Plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less any accumulated depreciation or impairment
losses.

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business or use for administrative purposes. The Bank holds
some investment property as a consequence of the ongoing rationalisation of its retail branch network.
Other property has been acquired through the enforcement of security over loans and advances.
Investment property is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation.

The gains or losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of the item of property and equipment, and are
recognized net in profit or loss.

Depreciation on all items of property, plant and equipment and investment property is provided on a
straight-line basis at rates designed to write down the cost or valuation of fixed assets over their
expected useful lives. Assets are not depreciated until they are brought into use and transferred from
construction in progress into the relevant asset category.

The applicable annual depreciation rates based on expected useful life on major assets categories are
as follows:

Annual depreciation Equivalent expected

rates (%) useful life (years)
=  Buildings 4 25
=  Computer hardware 20-50 2-5
= Fixtures and fittings 15-20 5-7
= Vehicles 25 4
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(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. As of
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the entire class of intangible assets includes only
investments in software and related licenses.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the asset. The average
estimated useful life of intangible assets controlled by the Bank is varies between 2 and 5 years.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

Bank represents as non-current assets held for sale, investments in property which carrying amount will
be recovered principally through sale transaction rather than continuing use. ltems are only included in
this category when the Management of the Bank has clear intention to finalize the sale and has already
started looking for a buyer.

Non-current assets held for sale are carried at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. As of December 31, 2010 Management has
reviewed Bank’s legal and constructive obligation and to the extent they meet the requirement for
recognition, provision is recorded, respectively.

Employees’ benefits
(i) Short-term employee’s benefits

Short-term employees’ benefits comprise of amounts due to personnel on the basis of unused paid
leave accounted for each and single employee as of the reporting date as well as expected additional
bonus payments for achieved results during the current financial year.

The amount of the unused paid-leave obligation includes the overall undiscounted amount of the
obligation the Bank has to settle should the employment contract is terminated as of the reporting date.
Short-term employees’ benefits are presented as other liabilities and disclosed separately in the Notes.

(ii) Defined benefit obligation
Defined benefit obligations are those agreed in the Collective Labour Agreement.

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Bank’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated by estimating the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods
and discounting that benefit to determine its present value. The discount rate used is those of Bulgarian
local currency government bonds at the reporting date. The calculation is performed by a qualified
actuary, hired by the Bank, using the projected unit credit method. To determine the net amount in the
statement of financial position, any actuarial gains and losses that have not been recognised because
of application of the “corridor” approach described below are added or deducted as appropriate and
unrecognised past service costs are deducted.

The Bank recognises a portion of actuarial gains and losses that arise in calculating the Group’s
obligation in respect of a plan in profit or loss over the expected average remaining working lives of the
employees participating in the plan.
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(p)

(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Defined benefit obligation (continued)

The portion is determined as the extent to which any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss at
the end of the previous reporting period exceeds 10 percent of the greater of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets (the corridor). Otherwise, the actuarial gains
and losses are not recognised.

(iii) UniCredit Group Medium and Long-Term incentive plans

UniCredit Group Medium and Long-Term incentive plans compose of Stock Options and Performance
share granted by the ultimate parent UniCredito Italiano S.p.A. They are allocated to selected group of
top and senior managers of the Bank.

Whenever the vesting period of the Stock options or Performance shares is ended, UniCredit Bulbank is
required to settle the monetary amount, corresponding to the economic value of the respective
instruments.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 UniCredit Bulbank presents the corresponding part
of the economic value of the Stock Options and Performance shares as payroll costs under personnel
expenses in the Income statement and the related obligation for payment as other liability.

Share capital and reserves
(i) Share capital

As described in Note 1, HVB Bank Biochim and Hebros Bank merged into Bulbank AD legally as of
April 27", 2007 with retroactive effect for accounting purposes since January 1%, 2007. At the time of
the merger the three merging entities were under direct control of Bank Austria Creditanstalt AG and
ultimately under control of UniCredito ltaliano S.p.A. The merger represents a share-exchange
transaction, where share-exchange ratios based on fair valuation of the net assets of the three Banks,
certified by independent auditor, as required by the Bulgarian Commercial Act, were applied. The share
capital of UniCredit Bulbank AD as of the date of merger was in the amount of BGN 239,256 thousand
and comprise of the share capital of Bulbank AD before the merger in the amount of BGN 166,370
thousand, increased by the newly issued ordinary shares exchanged for the ordinary shares of the
merging Banks HVB Bank Biochim AD and Hebros Bank AD (increase in the amount of BGN 72,886
thousand).

In September 2010 shareholders of UniCredit Bulbank AD approved a capital increase in the amount of
BGN 179,000 thousand through issuing 24,655,650 new shares with issuing price BGN 7.26 and face
value BGN 1, each. The capital increase was dully completed and registered and as of December 31,
2010 the share capital of the Bank amounts to BGN 263,911 thousand.

(ii) Reserves

Reserves consist of statutory reserves and retained earnings held within the Bank as well as revaluation
reserves on property, available for sale investments and cash flow hedge reserve. As of December 31,
2010 the reserves includes also the premium of newly issued shares corresponding to the difference
between the issuing price and the face value.
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(r)

(s)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Tax on the profit for the year comprises current tax and the change in deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized in the Income statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly to
other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive income. Current
tax comprises tax payable calculated on the basis of the expected taxable income for the year, using
the tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment of tax payable for previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences between the carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates that are expected to apply for the periods when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled. The effect on deferred tax of any changes in tax rates is
charged to the Income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items previously charged or
credited directly to other comprehensive income.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax losses and credits can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Segment reporting

As of January 1, 2009 the Bank has adopted IFRS 8 "Operating Segments" which requires the Bank to
present operating segments based on the information that is internally provided to the Management.
This adoption does not represent a change in accounting policy as the business segments that has
been previously determined and presented by the Bank in accordance with IAS 14 "Segment Reporting"
are also the primary operating segments which are regularly reported to the Management of the Bank.
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(t)

New IFRS and interpretations (IFRIC) not yet adopted as at the reporting date

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after January 1, 2010, and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. None of these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the
Bank.

IASB/IFRIC documents not yet endorsed by EC:

Management believes that it is appropriate to disclose that the following revised standards, new
interpretations and amendments to current standards, which are already issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), are not yet endorsed for adoption by the European commission,
and therefore are not taken into account in preparing these financial statements. The actual effective
dates for them will depend on the endorsement decision by the EC.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (issued November 2009 and Additions to IFRS 9 issued October 2010)
has an effective date 1 January 2013 and could change the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. The extent of the potential impact has not been determined.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (issued October 2010) has an effective
date 1 July 2011 — not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (issued December 2010) has
an effective date 1 January 2012 — not expected to have a significant impact on the financial
statements of the Bank.

Amendments to IFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
(issued December 2010) has an effective date 1 July 2012 — not expected to have a significant
impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

Improvements to IFRSs 2010 (issued April 2010), various effective dates, generally 1 January 2011
- not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Bank.
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. . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
l Unlcredlt BUIbank STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

(a)

Financial risk management
General framework

UniCredit Bulbank AD is exposed to the following risks from financial instruments:

=  market risk;

= liquidity risk;

= credit risk;

= operational risk.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Bank’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk and the Bank’s management of
capital.

Different types of risks are managed by specialized departments and bodies within the Bank’s structure.
The applicable policies entirely correspond to the requirements of Risk Management Group Standards
as well as all respective requirements set by Bulgarian banking legislation. Bank manages risk positions
on aggregate basis, focusing in reaching optimal risk/return ratio.

Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) is a specialized body established in the Bank for the purposes
of market risk and structural liquidity management.

Credit risk in the Bank is specifically monitored through Provisioning and Restructuring Committee
(PRC). It is a specialized body responsible for credit risk assessment, classification of credit risk
exposures and impairment losses estimation. Assessment of the credit risk is in accordance with the
Group standards and for regulatory purposes in accordance with Bulgarian National Bank requirements.

Management of the Bank has approved certain limits aiming to mitigate the risk impact on the Bank’s
result. These limits are within the overall risk limits of the banking group. The limits for credit risk
depend on size of the exposure. Management Board approves the big exposure — 10 % of the capital of
the Bank (requirement of Law on Credit Institutions). There is an effective procedure established in the
Bank for limits monitoring, including early warning in case of limits breaches.

The operational risk governance system of UCB is set to identify, manage and mitigate the operational
risk exposure, defining a system of clearly outlined responsibilities and controls. Senior management is
responsible for the effective oversight over operational risk exposure and approves all material aspects
of the framework. Fundamental element of the operational risk system is the existence of an
Operational Risk Committee.
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. . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
l Unlcredlt BUlbank STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

(b)

Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk

Risk monitoring and measurement in the area of market risks, along with trading activities control is
performed by Market Risk department. Market risks control function is organized independently from the
trading and sales activities. Prudent market risk management policies and limits are explicitly defined in
Market Risk Rule Book and Financial Markets Rule Book, reviewed at least annually. A product
introduction process is established in which risk managers play a decisive role in approving a new
product.

Market risk management in UniCredit Bulbank encompasses all activities in connection with Markets
and Investment Banking operations and management of the assets and liabilities structure. Risk
positions are aggregated at least daily, analyzed by the independent Market risk management unit and
compared with the risk limits set by the Management Board and ALCO. The risk control function also
includes ongoing monitoring and reporting of the risk positions, limit utilization, and daily presentation of
results of Markets & Investment Banking and Assets and Liabilities Management (ALM) operations.

UniCredit Bulbank applies uniform Group risk management procedures. These procedures make
available the major risk parameters for the various trading operations at least once a day. Besides
Value at Risk, other factors of equal importance are stress-oriented sensitivity and position limits.
Additional element is the loss-warning level limit, providing early indication of any accumulation of
position losses.

For internal risk management and Group compliant risk measurement, the Bank applies UniCredit Bank
Austria’s internal model NoRISK. It is based on historical and Monte Carlo simulation of returns and
accounts for risk reducing effects between the risk categories interest, credit spread, foreign exchange,
equity, volatilities, and commaodities. The simulation results, supplemented with distribution metrics and
limit utilization are reported on a daily basis to the management. In addition to the risk model results,
income data from market risk activities are also determined and communicated on a daily basis.
Reporting covers the components reflected in IFRS-based profit and the marking to market of all
investment positions regardless of their recognition in the IFRS-based financial statements (“total
return”).

During 2010, VaR (1 day holding period, confidence interval of 99 %) moved in a range between EUR
1.11 million and EUR 6.07 million, averaging EUR 2.34 million, with the credit spreads being main driver
of total risk in both, trading and banking books.

VaR of UniCredit Bulbank AD by risk category in EUR million for 2010 is as follows:

Risk Category Minimum Maximum Average Year-end

Interest rate risk 0.34 2.35 0.78 0.62
Credit spread 0.83 5.14 1.97 1.98
Exchange rate risk 0.11 0.19 0.16 0.14
Vega risk 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.01
VaR overall’ 1.11 6.07 2.34 2.16

"Including diversification effects between risk factors
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4,
(b)

Financial risk management (continued)
Market risks (continued)
VaR development of UniCredit Bulbank for 2010 (EUR thousands) is as follows:
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Reliability and accuracy of the internal model is monitored via daily back-testing, comparing the
simulated results with actually observed fluctuations in market parameters and in the total value of
books. Back-testing results for 2010 continued to confirm the reliability of the model.

In addition to VaR, risk positions of the Bank Austria Group are limited through sensitivity-oriented limits.
The most important detailed presentations include: basis point shift value (interest rate /spread changes
of 0.01 % by maturity bucket), credit spread basis point value (credit spread changes of 0.01% by
maturity bucket) and FX sensitivities. In the interest rate sector, the Basis-Point-Value (BPV) limit
restricts the maximum open position by currency and time buckets, with valuation changes based on
shift by 0.01% (1 basis point).

The following sensitivities’ table provides summary of the interest rate risk exposure of UniCredit
Bulbank AD (trading and banking book) as of December 30, 2010 (change in value due to 1 basis point
shift, amounts in EUR):

Currency 0-3M 3M-1Y  1Y-3Y  3Y-10Y Above 10Y  Total
BGN 2,795 9240 (4,902)  (23,359) (352) (16,578)
CHF 421) 1,296 (32) (213) 9) 621
EUR 12,281 17,682  (7,711) 10,198 (1,351) 31,099
GBP (105)  (210) 8 - - (307)
JPY - - - - - -
usD (25)  (564) (2,158)  (11,411) (1) (14,159)
Total sensitivity' 15,627 28,992 14,811 45,181 1,713 62,764

Measured by the total basis-point value, the credit spread position of UniCredit Bulbank as of December
31, 2010 totalled to EUR 96,747. Treasury-near instruments continue to account for the largest part of
the credit spread positions while the current exposure to financials and corporates is relatively lower.

Value-at-risk calculations are complemented by various stress scenarios to identify the potential effects
of stressful market conditions on the Bank’s earnings. The assumptions under such stress scenarios
include extreme movements in prices or rates and dramatic deterioration in market liquidity. Stress
results for major asset classes and portfolios (credit, rates and FX) and estimated impact on liquidity
position up to 60 days are reported at least monthly to ALCO. In 2010 the Bank’s Management
continued vigilant risk management practices by limiting risk taking and focus on client-driven business.

! Total sensitivity for each maturity band is sum of the each currency absolute sensitivity for that band.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Market risks (continued)

UniCredit Bulbank AD is exposed to exchange rate risk through transactions in foreign currencies. Net
FX open positions in trading and banking book are monitored on daily basis and are restricted by
volume overnight limits.

As of December 31, 2010 the consolidated FX balances of UniCredit Bulbank AD are as outlined in the

table below:
In thousands of BGN
EUR and BGN Other Total
currencies

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central bank 865,666 8,994 874,660
Financial assets held for trading 161,270 890 162,160
Derivatives held for trading 55,020 1,230 56,250
Fingncial assets designated at fair value through 102,278 8.267 110,545
profit or loss
Loans and advances to banks 1,678,757 20,457 1,699,214
Loans and advances to customers 7,361,256 172,144 7,533,400
Available for sale Investments 278,732 - 278,732
Held to maturity Investments 126,603 164,779 291,382
Investments in associates 29,218 - 29,218
Property, plant, equipment and investment 241,765 ) 241,765
properties
Intangible assets 31,097 - 31,097
Current tax assets 3,471 3,471
Deferred tax assets 6,321 - 6,321
Non-current assets and disposal group classified 21 21
as held for sale B
Other assets 22,455 142 22,597
TOTAL ASSETS 10,963,930 376,903 11,340,833
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities held for trading 61,166 1,151 62,317
Derivatives used for hedging 2,313 2,214 4,527
Deposits from banks 2,472,110 138,061 2,610,171
Deposits from customers 5,933,688 602,160 6,535,848
Subordinated liabilities 214,053 - 214,053
Provisions 15,579 18,687 34,266
Current tax liabilities 80 - 80
Deferred tax liabilities 20,193 - 20,193
Other liabilities 64,735 1,316 66,051
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,783,917 763,589 9,547,506
EQUITY 1,793,327 - 1,793,327
Net _o_ff-balance sheet spot and forward (395,590) 388,523 (7,067)
position
Net position (8,904) 1,837 (7,067)
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Market risks (continued)

As of December 31, 2009 the consolidated FX balances of UniCredit Bulbank are as outlined in the

table below:
In thousands of BGN
EUR and BGN Other Total
currencies

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central bank 824,887 7,277 832,164
Financial assets held for trading 115,450 - 115,450
Derivatives held for trading 42,987 2,155 45,142
Derivatives used for hedging 84 1,437 1,521
Fmapcnal assets designated at fair value through 127,516 8555 136,071
profit or loss
Loans and advances to banks 2,050,172 21,395 2,071,567
Loans and advances to customers 7,252,251 126,427 7,378,678
Available for sale Investments 283,912 1,573 285,485
Held to maturity Investments 147,462 167,287 314,749
Investments in associates 22,511 - 22,511
Property, plant, equipment and investment 247,022 ) 247,022
properties
Intangible assets 34,866 - 34,866
Current tax assets 9,796 - 9,796
Deferred tax assets 6,696 - 6,696
Non-current assets and disposal group classified 2236 ) 2236
as held for sale
Other assets 19,698 77 19,775
TOTAL ASSETS 11,187,546 336,183 11,523,729
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities held for trading 38,165 2,046 40,211
Derivatives used for hedging 6 - 6
Deposits from banks 3,099,413 14,589 3,114,002
Deposits from customers 5,825,041 588,056 6,413,097
Subordinated liabilities 212,123 - 212,123
Provisions 19,256 17,308 36,564
Current tax liabilities 27 - 27
Deferred tax liabilities 21,041 - 21,041
Other liabilities 45,393 1,131 46,524
TOTAL LIABILITIES 9,260,465 623,130 9,883,595
EQUITY 1,640,134 - 1,640,134
Net pff-balance sheet spot and forward (291,379) 295,179 3,800
position
Net position (4,432) 8,232 3,800
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4.
(c)

Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from its financial
liabilities.

The collective Bank’s body for liquidity management is ALCO (Assets and Liabilities Committee).
Operative management rules, as well as contingency plan and funding plan procedures are laid down in
the Bank’s Liquidity Management Policy.

The liquidity is operationally managed through Markets and Sales Division and the structural liquidity
through Assets and Liabilities Division. According to the Liquidity Policy, Assets and Liabilities Division
monitors on a daily basis short term flows, arising form treasury activities with a time horizon up to three
months. The structural liquidity is monitored on a weekly basis prepared under three scenarios — going
concern, liquidity crisis and name crisis. For the purposes of liquidity management are monitored daily
short-term limits, defined as function of the primary funds and liquidity stress-test results. Structural
liquidity limit ratios define minimum required coverage of long-term assets with coherent liabilities.
During 2010 the Bank was in compliance with the Group liquidity limit requirements.

The following tables provide basic analysis of the financial liabilities of the Bank into relevant maturity
bands based on the remaining contractual periods to repayment for items with defined maturity and
model mapping for items with no defined maturity. The gross amounts include also estimated or
contractual interest payments. Actual outflows may materially differ from those presented in the tables
as historically most of the clients’ attracted deposit have economic maturity much longer than the
contractual one (deposits are consistently rolled over).

26



1C

(915'8zs) (¥85°2L97)  (L16°110°2) (29.2°'808°L)  (6¥2995'c) (€60'¥S9°0L) €8.'69¢6 saijijiqel| [eloueUly [B}0 |
¥.9 (s86) 058°Z (802°2) (9cv‘olL) (soL‘oL) (r6s0L) S9AIeALIdp [e)o |
- €0v'9 868 9¥ 81§ Gog'/, MoJu|
- (555'g) (¥6E°L) (2oL) (982'2) (zve'eL) MoINO
(225'v) j9u ‘Buibpay 1o} pasn saAljeAla(q
€oL'ee 126912 LOE‘LGZ 99652 G62'698 981'GS9‘L Moju|
(62v'ce)  (vse'sve) (556°L12) (€11°262) (£96°'228) (#18°099°L) MOINO
(£90°9) J9U ‘saAljeAlIap Buipe.)
(o61‘62s) (666°129°C) (1Z8°080°2) (666°'908°L)  (g18'Ges‘e)  (886°CH9°0L) 11£°08€'6 SJUBWINJIISUI SAIJBALISP-UOU |B}O |
- (L¥1L'268) (59t°'202) - (zzg'al) (PEV'L2LL) - saul| Jipalo pazijnun
- (gog'02) - - - (gog02) G0E‘02 S}oeNUO0D 99juEIEND [BIOUBUL PONSS|
(ov0‘LeL)  (sgs'sel) - - - (125'962) €50'vLe saljiigel| pajeulpiogns
(z1) (e29'0tL°L)  (8Gt'G0S‘L) (282'cG2‘L)  (1¢6'6212)  (19€°185°9) 8¥8'GEG‘9 SJ8wojsno woulj sysodsg
(zer'ges)  (6v6°L8Y) (¥06°29€) (zL2°19) (vGo'6Gse'L)  (LLE'Y99°T) LZ10L9°¢ syueq woJy sysodaQ
sjusawnuiisul aAIJeALISP UON
Jleak

sieak sieak | 0} syjuow syjuow yuouw MOJ} junowe 01.0Z 19qWa29( L 3€ Se a|qe} Aumep

G JI9AQ G 0} | wold & Woly €0} Lwoi4 | oydn (3n0) ui1 ssoug Buihiien :

NS4 Jo spuesnoyj uj

(panunuoo) ysu Aypinbi

(penuuos) Juswabeuew )ysu jeloueul ]

(&)
84

0102 ‘1€ YAIINADAA

JHANT IVIA HHL J0O4 SINHINALV.LS
TVIONVNIA AALVAI'TOSNOD OL SHLON

yueqing Ipaniun



8¢

(ove‘'vez) (166°202°2) (0s6'09¢L) (L9L'8L¥'L) (0bS'S9p'S) (885°L08°0L) €56'79.°6 saniiqel| [eloueuly [e30 L
95 16S°C 698y £v9 618C ¥€6°01 vt SOAIJRALISP [B}0 |
059 gLl'cl 0€6 2z 89 88¢'Gl Mol
(929) (SL¥'LL) (G2L°1) (gg) (0s¢) (66S°€1) MOIINO
GLG'L jou ‘Buibpay 10j pasn saAljeAlIaq
19921 69L° /L1 616'GE 122101 16G°229 119'688 MOju|
(geg'et)  (Lze'9Ll)  (608°0€) (£19'001)  (06%'6L9)  (Z/¥°088) MOINO
LE6'Y JoU ‘saAleAlap Buipel ]
(zoo‘s6z) (zvsorz'z) (S18'6oe’L) (v08'8L¥‘L) (6GE'89t'S) (22Zs'SL8oL) 10G'8G.‘6 SJUBWINIISUI SAIJEALISP-UOU [B)O |
- (906'806) - - (626°€l) (5e8°zz6) - saul| JIpalo pazijnun
- (g82'61) - - - (G8z'61) G8Z'61 S}oeNUO0D d9juEIEND [BIOUBUL PONSS|
(29Z'c02) (¥82°2S) - - - (150'952) geleie sall|igel| pejeulpiogng
(z1) (P90'zLy)  (090°20¢'L) (B20'tLt'L) (2LO'v9Z'E) (221°9G+'9) 160°CL¥'9 SJawo)snd woly sysodeQg
(€z216)  (€0G6°218)  (552'8S) (G22°G) (8L¥'06L2) (PLL¥9L°E) coovilLe syueq woJy sysodaQ
sjuawWnIIsul dAIJeALIdp UON
Jleak

sieak sieak o1 sUIuowW syjuow yiuow MOJ} junowe 13aWa99 e se alqe1 fuume

G JanQ G 0} | wol4 m e_wo.__“_p €0} Lwoid Loydn (3n0) uiI ssoun Buifuen 600z 129 aiesl 1qe3 Aunjen

NOg Jo spuesnoy} uf

(panunuod) ysu Ayipinbi (@)

(penuuos) Juswabeuew )ysu jeloueul ] v

0102 ‘1€ YAIINADAA
JHANT IVIA HHL J0O4 SINHINALV.LS
TVIONVNIA AALVAI'TOSNOD OL SHLON

yueqing Ipaniun



. . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
l Unlcredlt BUlbank STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

4.
(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risks

Credit risk is defined as potential losses arising from not fulfilment of any contractual obligation with
regard to issued or originated financial instrument.

Bank effectively manages credit risk inherent to its trading and banking book

Bank applies different approach and has established different departments with regard to monitoring the
credit risk related to corporate clients, small and middle enterprises and individuals.

(i)

(i)

Credit risk in the trading book

For the purposes of mitigating the counterparty risk and settlement risk with regard to the deals
in the trading book, Bank concludes deals only with approved counterparts (banks or corporate
clients) that have got assigned treasury credit lines. Derivatives are offered to corporate and
institutional clients exclusively for hedging purpose.

Regulatory trading book includes financial assets held for trading purposes and derivatives.
The analysis based on client credit quality and rating (where available) as of December 31,
2010 and December 31, 2009 is as shown in the next table:

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Government bonds
Rated BBB 18,159 331
Rated BBB+ 45,824 5,187
Bonds of credit institutions
Rated AAA 35,949 35,220
Rated BB 35,176 39,637
Unrated 1,165
Corporate bonds
Rated BB 22,277 -
Unrated 3,093 30,570
Equities 1,682 3,340
Derivatives (net)
Banks and financial institution counterparties (45,425) (31,642)
Corporate counterparties 39,358 36,573
Total trading assets and liabilities 156,093 120,381

Credit risk in the banking book

Credit risk, inherent in the banking book, is managed as the creditworthiness of Bank’s clients is
assessed for the whole life of the loan, from the date of initial loan application till the date of
final repayment. Issued Letters of Guarantees, Letters of Credit and all other irrevocable credit
commitments fell also within the scope of Bank’s credit risk monitoring. As a credit risk
mitigation policy, Bank accepts different types of collaterals depending on the product and
client. As a rule collaterals are registered on behalf of the Bank prior to the effective disbursal
of the loans.
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4,
(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risks (continued)

(i)

Credit risk in the banking book (continued)

The competent body for assessing impairment allowances is the Provisioning and Restructuring
Committee (PRC). PRC regularly assess whether there is objective evidence that a loan or a
group of loans is impaired. A loan or group of loans is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred if:

o there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of a loss event that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset and up to the reporting date (“a loss event”);

o the loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets; and

« areliable estimate of the loss amount can be made.

The Bank establishes an allowance for loan losses that represents the estimate of impairment
losses in the loan portfolio. The components of this allowance are the individually and the
collectively assessed loss allowance. The Bank first assess whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for loans that are significant. Then collectively impairment
assessment is performed for those loans that are not individually significant and loans which
are significant but for which there is no objective evidence of impairment under the individual
assessment.

Risk assessment is done at least once per month. Credit risk methodology adopted by the Bank
is explicitly defined in the Policy for evaluation of risk exposures.

The practice adopted in the Bank is to prepare internal rules for all credit products, especially in
the Retail banking, setting the loan parameters, acceptable collaterals and the documentation
required from the clients for credit risk assessment.

Credit risk monitoring is also focused on fulfilment of statutory lending limits set in Law on Credit
Institutions. Exposure to one client or group of related clients exceeding 10% of the capital base
are treated as big exposures and it has to be approved by the Management Board. Maximum
amount of an exposure to one client or group of related clients must not exceed 25% of the
capital base of the Bank.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the Bank has fulfilled all statutory lending
limits.
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Credit risks (continued)
(i) Credit risk in the banking book (continued)

The table below analyses the breakdown of impairment allowances as of December 31, 2010
and December 31, 2009.

In thousands of BGN

Carrying amount Impairment Carrying amount
before impairment allowance
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Individually impaired 779,072 316,282 474,306 266,649 304,766 49,633
Collectively impaired 6,767,724 5,030,758 109,010 138,363 6,658,714 4,892,395
Past due but not impaired 39,204 200 - - 39,204 200
Past due comprises
from 31 to 90 days 1,440 2 - - 1,440 2
from 91 to 180 days 7,829 40 - - 7,829 40
over 181 days 29,935 158 - - 29,935 158
39,204 200 - - 39,204 200
Neither past due nor impaired 530,716 2,436,450 - - 530,716 2,436,450

Total 8,116,716 7,783,690 583,316 405,012 7,533,400 7,378,678
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4,
(d)

Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risks (continued)

(ii)

Credit risk in the banking book (continued)

The breakdown of the fair value of collaterals pledged in favour of the Bank on loans and

advances to customers is as follows:

In thousands of BGN
Loans and advances to customers

2010 2009
Against individually impaired
Cash collateral 143 579
Property 775,930 1,161,043
Other collateral 1,934,880 1,947,415
Against collectively impaired
Cash collateral 18,223 1,308
Property 9,661,502 9,227,381
Debt securities 10,021 12
Other collateral 17,221,236 11,779,026
Against past due but not impaired
Cash collateral 325 1,396
Property 124,586 646
Debt securities 13 -
Other collateral 89,998 1,417
Neither past due nor impaired
Cash collateral 87,777 58,354
Property 1,711,043 2,629,238
Debt securities 79,079 29,630
Other collateral 620,807 8,423,299
Total 32,335,563 35,260,744
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4. Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Credit risks (continued)
(i) Credit risk in the banking book (continued)

The concentration of risk exposures in different sectors of the economy as well as geographical
spread out is as outlined in table below:

In thousands of BGN

Loans and advances to Loans and advances Investment
customers to banks securities
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Concentration by sectors
Sovereign 59,253 57,584 - - 526,122 552,973
Manufacturing 1,622,898 1,553,106 - - - -
Commerce 1,669,173 1,690,683 - - - -
Construction and real estate 1,409,335 1,000,384 - - - -
Agriculture and forestry 149,096 138,058 - - - -
Transport and communication 289,222 376,934 - - - -
Tourism 174,127 265,929 - - - -
Services 229,533 200,476 - - - -
Financial services 171,897 257,095 1,699,214 2,071,567 73,210 69,772

Retail (individuals)

Housing loans 1,574,778 1,425,488 - - - -
Consumer loans 767,404 817,953 - - - -
8,116,716 7,783,690 1,699,214 2,071,567 599,332 622,745
Impairment allowances (583,316) (405,012) - - - -
Total 7,533,400 7,378,678 1,699,214 2,071,567 599,332 622,745

Concentration by geographic

location
Europe 8,115,082 7,781,514 1,685,793 2,059,214 585,403 606,293
North America 97 113 4,691 12,033 2,951 5,491
Asia 1,377 1,807 8,513 164 10,978 10,961
Africa 46 153 - - - -
South America 22 11 - - - -
Australia 92 92 217 156 - -
8,116,716 7,783,690 1,699,214 2,071,567 599,332 622,745
Impairment allowances (583,316) (405,012) - - - -
Total 7,533,400 7,378,678 1,699,214 2,071,567 599,332 622,745
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(e)

Financial risk management (continued)

Operational Risk

UniCredit Bulbank defines as operational the risk of losses due to errors, infringements, interruptions,
damages caused by internal processes, personnel, systems or caused by external events: internal or
external fraud, employment practices and workplace safety, client claims, fines and penalties due to
regulation breaches, damage to company physical assets, business disruption and system failures,
process management.

The operational risk management framework is a combined set of policies and procedures for
controlling, measuring and mitigating the operational risk exposure of UniCredit Bulbank, among which
the Group Operational Risk Management Framework and Methodological Manual for Operational Risk
Control and Measurement. Integral parts of the framework are the Operational risk control rulebook, as
well as the Internal regulation “Data collection procedure for the purpose of operational risk assessment
in UniCredit Bulbank”.

The Bank has a dedicated function for operational risk management, which is independent from
business and operational areas, as well as from the Internal Audit function. The Operational risk unit
responsibilities are in line with those envisaged by the Holding company and clearly formalized in the
approved by the Management Board Operational risk control rulebook. While the main task of the
Operational risk unit is to define the methods used and to perform risk measurement and analysis, the
nominated operational risk managers in different areas working on a decentralized basis are
responsible for loss data reporting and taking measures to reduce and prevent risks.

Activities in 2010 focused primarily on fulfilling the regulatory requirements inherent to the application
submitted to the Bulgarian National Bank to use the Advanced Measurement Approach (AMA), the most
sophisticated approach for calculating the capital requirements for operational risk. In the process the
Operational risk unit underwent control verifications by three independent authorities, namely UniCredit
Group Internal Validation, UCB Internal Audit and BNB. By receiving the official approval by Bank of
Italy and BNB, UniCredit Bulbank will be the first bank in Bulgaria to use AMA for the capital calculation
of operational risk.

Overall, the organization of operational risk management at UniCredit Bulbank is well established, at
high level of quality. Particular attention is dedicated to the involvement of the senior management in
the operational risk framework setting and control as well to their awareness of the entity’s operational
risk profile. With the set-up of the Operational Risk Committee, the regular exchange of information
substantially improved the promotion of operational risk awareness in the Bank.
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(f)

Financial risk management (continued)
Basel Il disclosure

Since January 1%, 2007 Bulgarian banks apply BASEL Il requirements for measurement of the capital
adequacy.

Under the regulatory framework, Bank allocates capital for covering three major types of risk, namely
credit risk, market risk and operational risk. For the year 2007 UniCredit Bulbank applied allowing
standardized approach for credit and market risks and the basic indicator approach for operational risk.
In 2008 Bank has been given permission by Bulgarian National Bank to apply standardized approach
also for operational risk.

Statutory limits exposed to Banks require Bank to maintain total capital adequacy ratio not less than
12% and Tier | ratio not less than 6%. As a response to the ongoing world financial crisis Bulgarian
National Bank strongly recommended all the Banks in Bulgaria to reached minimum Tier | ratio of 10%
latest by June 2009.

Under this Basel |l disclosure, Bank represents regulatory requirements for consolidated reporting.
These requirements may differ form IFRS basis for consolidation as it covers only financial institutions,
being subsidiary or associate of a credit institution therefore consolidated Basel Il figures does not
include full consolidation of Hypovereins Immobilien EOOD and equity method of consolidation of Pirelli
Real Estate AD, being both non-financial institutions. However Bank dully deduct the participation in
those entities from its capital base (own funds).

(i) Capital base (own funds)

Capital base (own funds) eligible for regulatory purposes include Tier | and Tier Il capital as
defined by Bulgarian National Bank.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the consolidated Capital base of UniCredit
Bulbank AD comprises as follows:

In thousands of BGN
2010 2009
Share capital 263,911 239,256
Statutory reserve 205,500 51,155
Retained earnings 1,019,309 1,022,772
Total capital and reserves 1,488,720 1,313,183
Deductions
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale instruments (11,955) (18,789)
Intangible assets (31,092) (34,859)
Total deductions (43,047) (53,648)
Total Tier | capital 1,445,673 1,259,535
Revaluation reserve on real estate properties occupied by
the Bank 137,368 136,070
Subordinated long-term debt 165,072 183,848
Total Tier Il capital 302,440 319,918
Additional deductions from Tier | and Tier Il capital (142,668) (26,060)
Total Capital base (Own funds) 1,605,445 1,553,393
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4.
()

Financial risk management (continued)

Basel Il disclosure (continued)

The additional deductions from the Capital

relates to Bank’s participation in

unconsolidated entities which represent 10% or more than 10% of the registered capital of such
entities as well as the excess of regulatory provisions on loans over recognized impairment
allowances under IFRS. For regulatory purposes the deduction is split equally between Tier |

and Tier Il capital.

(i) Capital requirements

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the capital requirements for credit, market

and operational risks are as follows:

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Capital requirements for credit risk
Exposures to:
Central Governments and Central Banks 6,729 6,859
Regional Governments and local authorities 4,644 4,247
Administrative bodies and non-commercial undertakings 165 11
Institutions 16,740 12,569
Corporates 407,417 205,336
Retail 66,440 63,047
Exposures secured on real estate property 49,482 304,469
Past due items 11,720 2,582
High risk exposures 26 26
Short-term exposures to institutions and corporates 26,745 30,675
Other exposures 21,138 21,193
Total capital requirements for credit risk 611,246 651,014
Capital requirements for market risk 11,558 12,147
Capital requirements for operational risk 82,668 79,017
Total c.apital .requirements for credit, market and 705,472 742,178
operational risk
Additional capital requirements subject to National
discretions from the Regulator 352,737 371,088
Total regulatory capital requirements 1,058,209 1,113,266
Capital Base (Own funds) 1,605,445 1,553,393
there of Tier | 1,374,339 1,246,505
Free equity (Own funds) 547,236 440,127
Total capital adequacy ratio 18.21% 16.74%
Tier | ratio 15.58% 13.44%
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()

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)
Basel Il disclosures (continued)

(ii) Capital requirements (continued)

Capital requirements for credit risk cover credit risk and dilution risk in the banking book,
counterparty risk in the overall business and settlement risk in the trading book.

Capital requirements for market risk cover market risk in the trading book, foreign-exchange
and commodity risks in the overall business.

Operational risk is calculated on applying standardized approach as described in note 4 (e)

The additional capital requirements, presented above, are subject to National discretion of
Bulgarian National Bank. They are calculated as 50% of the total capital requirements for credit
risk, market risk and operational risk.

Use of estimates and judgement

For the purposes of preparation of these financial statements Management has used certain estimates
and judgement in order to provide fair and through presentation of the financial position of the Bank.
These estimates and judgement require Management to get used all information available in order to
assess and where possible to quantify potential impact in the Bank’s financial position as a result of
some uncertain events.

In general the estimates and judgement are widely used in assessing:

= Fair value determination of financial instruments;
= |mpairment of financial instruments, especially loans;
= Quantification of the provisions for constructive and/or legal obligations

Fair value determination of financial instruments

As described in note 3 (i) (vi) Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:
= Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical
instrument.
= Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than
active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly observable from market data.
= Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes inputs not based on
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued based on
quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments the Bank determines
fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted
cash flow models, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, Black-
Scholes and polynomial option pricing models and other valuation models.
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(a)

Use of estimates and judgement (continued)
Fair value determination of financial instruments (continued)

Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates,
credit spreads and other inputs used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices and expected price volatilities and correlations.
The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price of
the financial instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by market participants
acting at arm’s length. The Bank uses widely recognised valuation models for determining the fair value
of common and more simple financial instruments, like interest rate and currency swaps that use only
observable market data and require little management judgement and estimation. Observable prices
and model inputs are usually available in the market for listed debt and equity securities, exchange
traded derivatives and simple over the counter derivatives like interest rate swaps. Availability of
observable market prices and model inputs reduces the need for management judgement and
estimation and also reduces the uncertainty associated with determination of fair values. Availability of
observable market prices and inputs varies depending on the products and markets and is prone to
changes based on specific events and general conditions in the financial markets. Valuation models
that employ significant unobservable inputs require a higher degree of management judgement and
estimation in the determination of fair value. Management judgement and estimation are usually
required for selection of the appropriate valuation model to be used, determination of expected future
cash flows on the financial instrument being valued, determination of probability of counterparty default
and prepayments and selection of appropriate discount rates.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method applied by the
Bank as of December 31, 2010.

In thousands of BGN
Instrument category Level 2 Level 3 Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Financial assets held for trading 136,790 80,374 25,370 35,076 162,160 115,450
Derivatives held for trading 56,250 44,785 - 357 56,250 45,142
Derivatives used for hedging - 1,521 - - - 1,521

Financial assets designated at fair 19,912 23509 90633 112,562 110545 136,071
value through profit or loss

Available for sale Investments 266,906 282,379 11,826 3,106 278,732 285,485
479,858 432,568 127,829 151,101 607,687 583,669

Financial liabilities held for trading 62,317 40,211 - - 62,317 40,211
Derivatives used for hedging 4,527 6 - - 4,527 6

66,844 40,217 - - 66,844 40,217
Total 546,702 472,785 127,829 151,101 674,531 623,886
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5. Use of estimates and judgement (continued)

(a) Fair value determination of financial instruments (continued)

The tables below analyses the fair value of financial instruments by classification as of December 31,
2010 and December 31, 2009

In thousands of BGN

Fair value Held-to- Loans and Available Other Total Fair value
December 2010 thro_ugh maturity receivables for sale amortized carrying
profit or cost amount
loss
ASSETS

Cash and balances with
Central bank
Financial assets held for

874,660 874,660 874,660

) 162,160 - - - - 162,160 162,160
trading
Derivatives held for trading 56,250 - - - - 56,250 56,250
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit 110,545 - - - - 110,545 110,545
or loss
Loans and advances to ] . 1,699,214 ; . 1,609,214 1,699,214
banks
Loans and advances to ; . 7,533,400 . . 7,533,400 7,533,338
customers
Available for sale ; ; . 278,732 . 278732 278,732
Investments
Held to maturity . 291382 ; ; . 291,382 306,771
Investments
TOTAL ASSETS 328,955 291,382 9,232,614 278,732 874,660 11,006,343 11,021,670
LIABILITIES
Fmgnmal liabilities held for 62.317 ) ) ) ) 62,317 62,317
trading
Deposits from banks - - - - 2610171 2,610,171 2,619,587
Deposits from customers - - - - 6,535,848 6,535,848 6,564,799
Subordinated liabilities - - - - 214,053 214,053 214,053
TOTAL LIABILITIES 62,317 - - - 9,360,072 9,422,389 9,460,756
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5. Use of estimates and judgement (continued)
(a) Fair value determination of financial instruments (continued)
In thousands of BGN
Fair value Held-to- Loans and Available Other Total Fair value
December 2009 throygh maturity receivables for sale amortized carrying
profit or cost amount
loss
ASSETS
Cash and balances with ) ) ) ) 832,164 832,164 832,164
Central bank
Fma_nmal assets held for 115,450 ) ) ) ) 115,450 115,450
trading
Derivatives held for trading 45,142 - - - - 45,142 45,142
Der|v_at|ves used for 1,521 ) ) ) ) 1,521 1,521
hedging
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit 136,071 - - - - 136,071 136,071
or loss
Loans and advances to - . 2,071,567 - - 2,071,567 2,071,567
banks
Loans and advances to i . 7,378,678 i . 7,378,678 7,378,743
customers
Available for sale ; ; . 285485 . 285485 285485
Investments
Held to maturity . 314,749 ] - . 314749 325,535
Investments
TOTAL ASSETS 298,184 314,749 9,450,245 285,485 832,164 11,180,827 11,191,678
LIABILITIES
Fma_nmal liabilities held for 40,211 ) ) ) ) 40,211 40,211
trading
Der|v_at|ves used for 6 ) ) ) ) 6 6
hedging
Deposits from banks - - - - 3,114,002 3,114,002 3,128,000
Deposits from customers - - - - 6,413,097 6,413,097 6,430,889
Subordinated liabilities - - - - 212,123 212,123 212,123
TOTAL LIABILITIES 40,217 - - - 9,739,222 9,779,439 9,811,229
The movements in Level 3 financial instruments in 2010 are as follows:
In thousands of BGN
Financial assets Financial assets Available for Derivatives
held for trading designated at fair sale held for
value through profit Investments trading
or loss
Opening balance (January 1, 2010) 35,076 112,562 3,106 357
Increases 212 6,689 21,179 -
Purchases 49 11,434 -
Profit recognized in income statement 163 6,689 9,745
Decreases (9,918) (28,618) (12,459) (357)
Sales (2,965) - (12,459) (357)
Redemption (1,315) (26,428) - -
Loses recognized in income statement (2,298) (2,190) - -
Transfers to other levels (3,340) - - -
Closing balance (December 31, 2010) 25,370 90,633 11,826 -
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(b)

(c)

Use of estimates and judgement (continued)

Impairment of financial instruments

In estimating the impairment on financial instruments carried at amortised costs, Management makes
judgements about the present value of the net cash flow to be received. By doing that counterparty’s
financial position as well as realizable value of the underlying collateral is considered.

Collectively assessed impairment loses cover credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans bearing similar
economic characteristics when there is an objective evidence to suggest that they contain impaired
loans. In such assessments factors that are mostly considered include credit quality, portfolio size,
concentration and economic factors.

The accuracy of the allowances depends on how well these estimate future cash flows for specific
counterparty impairment and the model assumptions and parameters used in determining collective
impairment.

Provisions

Estimating the provision Management used estimates provided by specialist in certain areas such as
legal and regulatory advisors as well as credit risk specialists. Usually more conservative approach is
followed in order to protect the Bank in case of adverse development of uncertain events.

Segment reporting

Business segments pay and receive interest from the Asset-Liability Management Department (ALM) on
arms’ length basis, through given Fund Transfer Pricing rate (FTP) to reflect the funding costs per
currencies/tenors. Allocation of capital is also carried out, in proportion to respective RWA.

The Bank operates the following main business segments:
e Markets and Investment Banking;
e Corporate and private Banking;
e Retail Banking;
e Asset-Liability Management Dept. and other.
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7.

Net interest income

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Interest income

Financial assets held for trading 7,354 7,892
Derivatives held for trading 21,481 16,636
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 7,600 10,139
Loans and advances to banks 7,435 20,201
Loans and advances to customers 565,040 566,193
Available for sale investments 9,905 13,898
Held to maturity investments 15,945 17,414
634,760 652,373

Interest expense
Derivatives held for trading (19,944) (14,680)
Derivatives used for hedging (2,545) (248)
Deposits from banks (22,627) (48,801)
Deposits from customers (154,848) (171,601)
Subordinated debt (5,847) (7,249)
(205,811) (242,579)
Net interest income 428,949 409,794

For the financial years ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the interest income
recognized on individually impaired financial instruments (loans and advances to customers) is in the
amount of BGN 20,729 thousand and BGN 36,958 thousand, respectively.

Net fee and commission income

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Fee and commission income

Collection and payment services 70,973 65,507
Lending business 23,721 20,966
Account services 16,750 18,216
Currency trading 26,319 25,829
Management, brokerage and securities trading 6,311 8,365
Documentary business 9,637 9,556
Package accounts 6,796 7,357
Other 4,077 3,082
164,584 158,878

Fee and commission expense
Collection and payment services (6,943) (6,423)
Management, brokerage and securities trading (708) (524)
Lending business (1,160) (1,483)
Other (239) (325)
(9,050) (8,755)
Net fee and commission income 155,534 150,123

44



' . . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
l Unlcredlt BUlbank STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

9.

10.

1.

Net gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
FX trading income, net 2,491 (652)
Net income from debt instruments (4,900) (371)
Net income from equity instruments (133) -
Net income from derivative instruments 3,398 4,266
Net trading income 856 3,243

Net gains (losses) on other financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

Bank designates as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss only marketable debt securities,
which fair value can be reliably measured. Net income recorded on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss includes realized gains and losses on such instruments as well as
unrealized ones due to fair value change. The amounts for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009 are BGN 5,819 thousand and BGN 65 thousand, respectively.

Net income from investments

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Realised gains on disposal of available for sale investments 9,986 1,676
Realised gains (losses) on disposal of held to maturity ) 493
investments
Net income from investments 9,986 2,169

In 2010 the shareholders of Borika AD (Bulgarian card operator) and Bankservice AD (Bulgarian
settlement operator) agreed to combine their activities through merging the two companies into a new
company (Borika-Bankservice AD) thus gaining some competitive advantage and benefiting from
operative synergies. As of the date of merger UniCredit Bulbank AD maintained minority interests in
both merging companies. According to the agreement the merger represented share-exchange
transaction where the shareholders of the merging companies received shares in the new company on
the basis of share-exchange ratios. These ratios were derived on the basis of fair market valuation of
the new company and were approved by all the shareholders and verified by external auditor as
required by Bulgarian Commercial Law. The difference between the fair market valuation of the
received by UniCredit Bulbank AD new shares and the value of the participations in the two merging
companies before the transformation, adjusted by previously recognized revaluation reserve, amounting
in total BGN 8,961 thousand is reported in the position realized gains on disposal of available for sale
investments.
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13.

14.

Net income related to subsidiaries, associates and property, plant and equipment

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Net income on disposal of subsidiaries and associates - 1,603
Net income on disposal of property, plant and equipment 270 8,501
Effect of equity method consolidation on associates 6,707 (4,227)
Impairment of participation in associates - (260)
Net income related to subsidiaries, associates and property, 6,977 5,617

plant and equipment

Net income related to subsidiaries and associates comprise of the gain out of the sale net of any
amounts retained by the buyers, subject to release upon fulfilment of certain escrow clauses.

Upon restructuring if its activity UniCredit Bulbank AD disposed in 2007 51% of the interest in local
Bulbank Leasing EAD. The entire realized net income in 2009 in the amount of BGN 1,603 thousand
comprise of releases of escrow amounts upon fulfilling the contracted conditions or expiration of
warranties given to the buyers.

In 2009 Bank took a decision to voluntarily liquidate together with the majority stake holder one of its
associates. As a result of that, Bank’s participation in that entity was impaired and impairment loss in
the amount of BGN 260 thousand was recognized.

Other operating income, net

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Other operating income

Income from non-financial services 1,339 1,386
Rental income from investment property 314 341
Other income 4,424 5,538
6,077 7,265

Other operating expenses
Other operating expenses (115) (370)
(115) (370)
Other operating income, net 5,962 6,895

Personnel expenses

In thousands of BGN
2010 2009
Wages and salaries (79,551) (79,886)
Social security charges (10,128) (10,758)
Pension and similar expenses (559) (476)
Temporary staff expenses (5,325) (5,107)
Share-based payments (56) (573)
Other (1,306) (981)
Total personnel expenses (96,925) (97,781)
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14.

Personnel expenses (continued)

As of December 31, 2010 the total number of employees, expressed in full time employee equivalent is
3,799 (December 31, 2009: 3,835)

Pension and similar expenses comprise of current services costs, interest costs and amortization of
actuarial gains/losses costs related to defined benefits obligation of the Bank to its employees upon
retirement. For more details about the pension scheme see note 40.

As described in note 3 (p) (iii) ultimate parent company UniCredit Italiano S.p.A has granted stock
options and performance shares to top and senior managers of UniCredit Bulbank AD. Upon expiration
of the vesting period of any of the granted instruments, UniCredit Bulbank AD is required to settle in
cash to the parent amounts corresponding to the economic value of the respective instruments. In
addition to that employees of the Bank can voluntarily participate in Employee Share Ownership Plan
(ESOP), where the advantages are that by buying UniCredit ordinary shares employees can receive
free ordinary shares, measured on the basis of the shares purchased by each participant during the
“Enrolment period”. The granting of free ordinary shares is subordinated to vesting conditions.

The table below analyses the costs and movement in the Bank’s liability by type of instruments granted:

In thousands

of BGN

Economic 2010 Cost Settled in Economic

value at 2010 value at

December 31, December

2009 31, 2010

Stock Options 11 2005 214 - (214) -
Stock Options 06 2006 183 30 - 213
Stock Options 06 2007 154 70 - 224
Stock Options 06 2008 104 76 - 180
Total Stock Options 655 176 (214) 617
Performance Shares 06 2006 323 (323) - -
Performance Shares 06 2007 - 190 - 190
Performance Shares 06 2008 - - - -
Total Performance Shares 323 (133) - 190
ESOP 2 13 - 15
Total Options and Shares 980 56 (214) 822

Detailed information about the granting dates, vesting period starting and ending dates of the stock
options and performance share is presented in the table below:

Instrument granted Granting date Vesting period Vesting period

start date end date
Stock Options 06 2006 13-Jun-06 30-Jun-06 30-Jun-10
Stock Options 06 2007 12-Jun-07 30-Jun-07 30-Jun-11
Stock Options 06 2008 25-Jun-08 30-Jun-08 30-Jun-12
Performance Shares 06 2006 13-Jun-06 31-Dec-08 31-Dec-09
Performance Shares 06 2007 12-Jun-07 31-Dec-09 31-Dec-10
Performance Shares 06 2008 25-Jun-08 31-Dec-10 31-Dec-11
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15.

16.

17.

General and administrative expenses

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Deposit guarantee fund annual contribution (27,031) (26,561)
Advertising, marketing and communication (6,992) (6,439)
Credit information and searches (1,712) (1,358)
Information, communication and technology expenses (29,022) (30,304)
Consulting, audit and other professionals services (2,224) (1,602)
Real estate expenses (13,026) (13,343)
Rents (13,466) (13,646)
Travel expenses and car rentals (2,386) (2,021)
Insurance (1,101) (1,150)
Supply and miscellaneous services rendered by third parties (10,652) (12,504)
Other costs (4,896) (4,763)
Total general and administrative expenses (112,508) (113,691)

Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on tangible and intangible fixed assets,
investment properties and assets held for sale

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Depreciation charge (33,954) (32,726)
Impairment due to obsolescence (2,152) (796)
Decrease in value due to revaluation (271) (1,351)
Decrease in value due to revaluation of non-current assets and

. o - (214)
disposal group classified as held for sale
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on
tangible and intangible fixed assets, investment properties (36,377) (35,087)

and assets held for sale

As part of the standard year-end closure procedures, Bank performs impairment assessment of its long-
term assets. Impairment is recognized whenever recoverable amount of the assets is lower than their
carrying amount. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the impairment of
long-terms assets other than real estate properties, is the amount of BGN 2,152 thousand and BGN 796
thousand, respectively.

Bank also performed review of the entire class of real estate properties. For all such properties, where
material decline in fair value is observed, the decrease in value due to revaluation in excess of
previously recognized revaluation reserve (devaluation) is recognized in profit or loss. For the years
ended December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 such devaluation of real estate properties amounts
to BGN 271 thousand and BGN 1,351 thousand, respectively.

Provisions for risk and charges

Provisions are allocated whenever based on Management best estimates Bank has present obligation
(legal or constructive) arising from past events for the settlement of which outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required. Whenever based on new circumstances and evidences
it is not anymore likely the outflow of resources to occur, the previously allocated provisions are
reversed (for more details see also Note 40).
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17.

18.

Provisions for risk and charges (continued)

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Additions of provisions
Provisions on letters of guarantee (1,020) (11,218)
Legal cases provisions (3,586) (4,763)
Other provisions (254) (220)
(4,860) (16,201)

Reversal of provisions

Provisions on letters of guarantee - 16,225
Legal cases provisions 6,401 17,452
Provisions on constructive obligations 416 1,374
Other provisions - 35
6,817 35,086
Net provisions charge 1,957 18,885

Net Impairment loss on financial assets

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Balance 1 January
Loans and advances to customers 405,012 285,420
Increase
Loans and advances to customers 330,803 170,111
Decrease
Loans and advances to customers (144,846) (38,222)
Recoveries from non-performing loans previously written-off (318) (1,743)
(145,164) (39,965)
Net impairment losses 185,639 130,146
Written-off
Loans and advances to customers (7,653) (12,297)
Balance December 31
Loans and advances to customers 583,316 405,012
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19.

20.

21.

Income tax expense

Taxation is payable at a statutory rate of 10 % on adjusted profits under the annual tax return prepared
under the Bulgarian Corporate Income Tax Law. Deferred tax is calculated using a tax rate of 10 %,

applicable for 2011.

The breakdown of tax charges in the income statement is as follows:

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Current tax (18,578) (21,585)
Deferred tax income (e>_(pense) related to origination and 732 (1,109)
reversal of temporary differences
Underprovided prior year income tax (173) (129)
Income tax expense (18,019) (22,823)

The tax on the Bank’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

basic tax rate as follows:

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Accounting profit before tax 184,724 220,220
Corporate tax at applicable tax rate (10% for 2010 and 2009) (18,472) (22,022)
Tax effect of non taxable revenue 705 114
Tax effect of non tax deductible expenses (245) (682)
Tax effect of reversal of temporary differences - (127)
Underprovided prior year income tax (7) (106)
Income tax expense (18,019) (22,823)
Effective tax rate 9.75% 10.36%

Cash and balances with Central bank

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Cash in hand 130,625 119,822
Current account with Central Bank 744,035 712,342
Total cash and balance with Central Bank 874,660 832,164

Financial assets held for trading

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Government bonds 63,983 5,517
Bonds of credit institutions 71,125 76,022
Corporate bonds 25,370 30,571
Equities 1,682 3,340
Total financial assets held for trading 162,160 115,450
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21.

22.

Financial assets held for trading (continued)

Financial assets held for trading comprise of bonds and equities that Bank holds for the purpose of
short-term profit taking by selling or repurchasing them in the near future.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 financial assets held for trading in the amount of
BGN 70,355 thousand and BGN 33,136 thousand, respectively, are pledged either on open repo-deals
and other funding deals or under regulatory requirement to pledge government bonds as collateral for
servicing State Budget accounts (see also Note 44).

Previous change in accounting policy

In October 2008 Management has adopted amendments in IAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” issued by IASB that same month. Considering the ongoing financial markets turmoil
as a possible example of “rare circumstances”, Management has changed its intention with regard to
certain government bonds, previously classified as held for trading.

The reclassification was performed retroactively, as allowed by the amendments, with effective date
July 1% 2008. Additional information on the reclassification is presented in the table below.

In thousands of BGN

Cumulatively

since
2010 reclassification
(July 2008 -
December 2010)
Fair value changes
Fair value gain (loss) that should have been recognized had the
- 3,148 8,161
assets not been reclassified
Net interest income
Net mte_rlest income recognized for the period after 4677 11,708
reclassification
Net interest income after reclassification that should have been 5.981 14,847

recognized had the assets not been reclassified

Derivatives held for trading

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Interest rate swaps 39,984 34,384
Equity options 1,828 528
FX forward contracts 14,031 4,951
FX options 1 588
Other options 198 4,144
FX swaps 72 547
Commodity swaps 136 -
Total trading derivatives 56,250 45,142

Derivatives comprise of trading instruments that have positive market value as of December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009. They are traded for Bank’s own purposes, including off-setting some FX, interest rate
or credit risks in banking and trading book as well as covering Bank’s customers’ business positions.
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23.

24,

25.

Derivatives used for hedging

As described in Note 3 (k) in 2009 Bank has adopted hedge accounting methodology aiming at
managing the residual interest rate risk in banking book. As of December 31, 2010 and December 31,
2009 Bank has designated only cash flow hedge relationships with hedging instruments being interest
rate swaps and hedged items being highly probable forecasted interest cash flows derived from
customers and banks’ business (attracted deposits).

As of December 31, 2010 the fair value of hedging derivatives is negative in the amount of BGN 4,527
thousand. As of December 31, 2009 the positive fair value of hedging instruments is in the amount of
BGN 1,521 thousand and the negative fair value of hedging instruments is BGN 6 thousand.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Government bonds 17,063 20,660
Bonds of credit institutions - 24,568
Municipality bonds 2,850 2,849
Corporate bonds 90,632 87,994
Total financial assets designated at fair value through 110,545 136,071

profit or loss

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are non-trading assets with determinable
market price that form a portfolio which performance is managed by the Bank on a fair value basis.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
in the amount of BGN 11,197 thousand and BGN 4,136 thousand, respectively, are pledged either on
open repo-deals and other funding deals or under regulatory requirement to pledge government bonds
as collateral for servicing State Budget accounts (see also Note 44).

Loans and advances to banks

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Loans and advances to banks 1,662,399 2,028,640
Current accounts with banks 36,344 42,923
Restricted accounts in foreign currency 471 4
Total loans and advances to banks 1,699,214 2,071,567
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26.

27.

28.

Loans and advances to customers

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Receivables under repurchase agreement - 956

Companies 5,715,281 5,481,709
Individuals

Housing loans 1,574,778 1,425,488

Consumer loans 767,404 817,953

Central and local governments 59,253 57,584

8,116,716 7,783,690

Less impairment allowances (583,316) (405,012)

Total loans and advances to customers 7,533,400 7,378,678

Available for sale investments

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Government bonds 249,613 261,613
Bonds of credit institutions 17,293 20,766
Equities 11,826 3,106
Total available for sale investments 278,732 285,485

Government and corporate bonds classified as available for sale investments are held by the Bank for
the purposes of maintaining middle and long-term liquidity, coverage of interest rate risk and State
Budget funds within the Bank. They have determinable fair value.

Equities presented as available for sale investments comprise of minority participation of the Bank in
companies where neither control nor significant influence is exercised. These investments are generally
carried at cost as their fair value can not be reliably measured. As of December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009 all available for sale investments are assessed for impairment. As a result of this
assessment no impairment has been recognized for the years.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 available for sale investments in the amount of BGN
145,007 thousand and BGN 133,400 thousand, respectively, are pledged either on open repo-deals and
other funding deals or under regulatory requirement to pledge government bonds as collateral for
servicing State Budget accounts (see also Note 44).

Held to maturity investments

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Government bonds 276,509 291,360
Bonds of credit institutions 14,873 23,389
Total held to maturity investments 291,382 314,749

Held to maturity investments comprise only of first class government and corporate bonds with
determinable payments that the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity.
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29.

Investments in associates

Company Activity Share in Carrying
capital value in
thousands
of BGN
Dec 2010
Consumer lending and other similar
UniCredit Consumer Financing AD activities in line with the applicable law 49.9% 24,139
and regulations
UniCredit Leasing AD Leasing activities 24.4% 2,687
Accepting, processing, safekeeping and
Cash Service Company AD delivering of valuable consignments with 20.0% 2,392
banknotes and coins to the banks
Pirelli Real Estate AD Management of real estate portfolio 25.0% -
Total 29,218

As described in Note 3 (i) (ii) g), investments in associates comprise of equity participations in entities
where Bank has significant influence.

For the purposes of supporting the business activities of UniCredit Consumer Financing AD, the Bank
approved increase of the reserves of the company by providing additional funds from the shareholders.
The Bank’s part of that increase was effectively paid in 2009 and as a result of that the cost of
participation in UniCredit Consumer Financing AD increased by BGN 12,692 thousand.

Following ongoing leasing activities reorganization, in December 2009 in-kind contribution in the capital
of UniCredit Leasing was performed. Bank participated with all its shares held in Bulbank Leasing AD at
that time. As this transformation represents a business combination among entities under common
control, the new value of Bank’s participation in UniCredit Leasing AD was increased by the book value
of its participation in Bulbank Leasing AD. As a result of the performed transformation Bank has no
longer direct participation in Bulbank Leasing AD, and its share in the net assets of transformed
UniCredit Leasing AD has been reduced to 24.4%.

In 2009 the shareholders of Pirelli Real Estate AD took a decision for voluntarily liquidation of the
Company. In order to meet its current and constructive obligation before the actual closure, the capital
of the Company has been increased. Bank’s share in that increase amounted to BGN 260 thousand.
Since the Management of the Bank does not expect any residual value to remain that could be
distributed among the shareholders upon completion of the closure procedure, the carrying amount of
the investments has been fully impaired by the end of 2009. As a result of this impairment, impairment
loss in the amount of BGN 260 thousand was recognized.
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30.

31.

Property, plant, equipment and investment properties (continued)

In 2009 Bank has performed valuation of entire class of properties (including land and buildings) based
on independent fair value assessment made by certified appraisers. For all the properties where the
assessed fair value materially differed from its carrying amount, the carrying amount was adjusted to
the assessed fair value. For all revaluated properties the accumulated depreciation before revaluation
was netted against assets’ book value. For the assets where the assessed fair value was higher than
their carrying amount the difference was recognized in other comprehensive income under revaluation
reserves. For those assets were the fair value was below its carrying amount the reduction was
recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent it reduces previously recognized increases. If
the amount of the previous increases was insufficient, the difference was recognized in profit or loss.

In 2010 Management of the Bank assesses the real estate market as relatively stable compared to
2009. However for the purposes of preparation of these financial statements, Bank has reviewed all the
properties for which there have been indicators for material change of market value. As a result of this
review, impairment loss in the amount of BGN 403 thousand has been recognized.

All the other categories were assessed for impairment at the year end and for those assets found to be
impaired (mostly due to obsolescence) impairment loss have been recognized.

Intangible assets

In thousands of BGN

Cost

As of December 31, 2009 98,711
Additions 6,660
Write offs (28,157)
Disposals

As of December 31,2010 77,214

Depreciation

As of December 31, 2009 63,845
Depreciation charge 10,416
Impairment due to obsolescence 13
Write offs (28,157)
As of December 31,2010 46,117
Net book value as of December 31, 2010 31,097
Net book value as of December 31, 2009 34,866
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31.

32.

33.

Intangible assets (continued)

In thousands of BGN

Cost

As of December 31, 2008 92,386
Additions 7,890
Write offs (1,547)
Disposals (18)
As of December 31,2009 98,711

Depreciation

As of December 31, 2008 54,211
Depreciation charge 11,159
Impairment due to obsolescence 27
Write offs (1,552)
As of December 31,2009 63,845
Net book value as of December 31, 2009 34,866
Net book value as of December 31, 2008 38,175

Current tax assets

The current tax assets comprise of Bank’s net tax position with regard to corporate income tax as of
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009. According to the statutory requirements, the Bank stand
alone and its subsidiaries pay during the year advance instalments for corporate income tax on the
basis of their tax profits for the prior year. Corporate tax in Bulgaria is charged on single entity basis. As
of December 31, 2010 Bank reports current tax assets in the amount of BGN 3,471 thousand and
current tax liabilities in the amount of BGN 80 thousand. The comparative amounts as of December 31,
2009 are BGN 9,796 thousand reported as current tax assets and BGN 27 thousand as current tax
liability.

Deferred tax

The origination breakdown of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009 is as outlined below:

In thousands of BGN

Assets Liabilities Net

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
:gzzfsrty’ plant and intangible (30) (33) 17,962 19,055 17,932 19,022
Available for sale investments (1,167) (1,855) 1,977 1,811 810 (44)
Provisions (1,117) (1,347) - - (1,117) (1,347)
Cash flow hedge (254) (175) 254 175 - -
Other liabilities (3,753) (3,286) - - (3,753) (3,286)
Net tax (assets) liabilities (6,321) (6,696) 20,193 21,041 13,872 14,345
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33. Deferred tax (continued)

The movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities on net basis throughout 2010 are as outlined

below:

In thousands of BGN

Balance 2009  Recognised  Recognised g, .0 2019

in P&L in equity
Property, plant, equipment 19,022 (1,090) - 17,932
Available for sale investments (44) 166 688 810
Provisions (1,347) 230 - (1,117)
Cash flow hedge - 429 (429) -
Other liabilities (3,286) (467) - (3,753)
Net tax (assets) liabilities 14,345 (732) 259 13,872
34. Non-current assets and disposal group classified as held for sale

In 2008 the Management has approved list of properties that no longer will be used in the ordinary
activity of the Bank nor will be utilized as investment properties. For all such assets Management has
started intensively looking for a buyer and has offered those properties on public auction.

As of December 31, 2010 Management has reviewed the remaining unsold properties and reassess
their future usage. For all of the properties for which due to market constraints sale in the near future is
not highly probable or which are to be brought back for continuously use in the banking business,
reclassification has been done together with the accompanying adjustment in the depreciation for the
period of being classified as held for sale. As of December 31, 2010 Bank reports BGN 21 thousand as
assets held for sale, which comprise of only one property which disposal procedures are in advance
stage as of year-end.

35. Other assets

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Receivables and prepayments 15,244 13,255
Receivables from the State Budget 133 47
Materials, spare parts and consumables 1,286 1,175
Other assets 5,934 5,298
Total other assets 22,597 19,775

36. Financial liabilities held for trading

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Interest rate swaps 38,869 36,765
FX forward contracts 21,324 1,351
Equity options 1,766 579
Other options 198 456
FX options 1 588
FX swaps 29 472
Commodity swaps 130 0
Total trading liabilities 62,317 40,211
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37.

38.

Deposits from banks

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Current accounts and overnight deposits
Local banks 238,159 65,090
Foreign banks 665,387 1,863,226
903,546 1,928,316

Deposits

Local banks 126,254 41,037
Foreign banks 1,537,550 1,024,828
1,663,804 1,065,865
Liabilities under repurchase agreements 30,310 117,034
Other 12,511 2,787
Total deposits from banks 2,610,171 3,114,002

Deposits from customers

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Current accounts and overnight deposits
Individuals 533,317 515,160
Corporate 1,705,376 1,625,369
Budget and State companies 159,554 129,639
2,398,247 2,270,168

Term deposits

Individuals 2,337,207 2,323,440
Corporate 1,188,900 1,222,186
Budget and State companies 160,253 171,799
3,686,360 3,717,425
Saving accounts 407,670 347,396
Transfers in execution process 42,324 76,486
Other 1,247 1,622
Total deposits from customers 6,535,848 6,413,097

Deposits from customers comprise of outstanding balances on clients’ current accounts, term deposits
and saving accounts as well as respective accrued interest in them as of the reporting date.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 there are transfers in execution that have either not
left the Bank’s patrimony (outgoing payments) or clients’ accounts have not been yet credited (incoming
payments). These temporary balances are presented as deposits from customers under transfers in
execution and process.
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39. Subordinated liabilities

As of December 31, 2010 the total amount of BGN 214,053 thousand represents the outstanding debt
(principal and accrued interest) on five loan facilities provided by UniCredit Bank Austria AG as outlined
in the table below:

In thousands of BGN

Outstanding
Start date Term to maturity Amount of the amount as of

original principal b, .omber 31, 2010

November 26, 2004 10 years 19,558 24,685
December 20, 2004 10 years 19,558 24,654
February 3, 2005 10 years 25,426 31,355
August 2, 2005 10 years 29,337 35,429
November 19, 2008 10 years 97,792 97,930
Total 191,671 214,053

All of them meet the requirements of Bulgarian National Bank for Tier Il inclusion for which Bank has
received written approval. No principal repayments are allowed prior to final maturity of the loans unless
explicitly approved by Bulgarian National Bank.

Under the clauses of subordinated agreements UniCredit Bank Austria has agreed that all the
subordinated indebtedness is unsecured and that any repayment of these liabilities in case of
insolvency, liquidation or dissolution of the Borrower (UniCredit Bulbank AD) shall be admitted after all
other Borrowers’ creditors have been reimbursed and satisfied.

40. Provisions

Balances of provisions as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 are as follows:

In thousands of BGN
Letters of Legal Retirement Constructive

guarantee cases benefits obligations Other Total
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)

Balance as of December 19,285 10,108 3,084 3,749 338 36,564
31, 2009
Allocations - 6 559 - 254 819
Releases - (3,180) - (416) - (3,596)
Addltlon_s due to FX 1,020 3580 ) ) ) 4.600
revaluation
Releases due to FX
revaluation - (3221) . ) - (3221)
Utilization - (11) (357) (370) (162) (900)
?1“'32"(;‘1:3 as of December 20,305 7,282 3,286 2,963 430 34,266
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40.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions on letters of guarantees

Provisions on letters of guarantees represent inherent credit risk losses embedded in undertaken by the
Bank contingent liabilities, whereas based on performed risk assessment by the respective bodies of
the Bank it is more likely that the Bank would have to settle the obligation upon fulfiiment of some
uncertain events.

As of December 31, 2010 Bank assessed its entire portfolio of issued letters of guarantee and
quantified provisions in the amount of BGN 20,305 thousand.

Provisions on legal cases

Provisions on legal cases are recognized when based on legal expertise the Bank would most likely
have to settle the obligation in the near future.

As of December 31, 2010 Bank has assessed its position in legal cases against it and provision in the
amount of BGN 7,282 thousand has been recognized.

Retirement benefit provision

Retirement benefit provision represents the present value of the bank’s liability in accordance with
Collective Labour Agreement, reduced by the amount of unrecognized actuarial losses as of the
reporting date.

Major assumptions underlying in 2010 Defined benefit obligation are as follows:

° Discount rate — 5.8%;
o Salary increase — 5% p.a.;
° Retirement age:

. Men — 63;

" Women — 60;
The movement of the defined benefit obligation for year ended 2010 and expected services cost,
interest costs and amortization of actuarial gains/losses for the following year are outlined in the table
below:

In thousands of BGN
Recognized defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2009 3,084
Current service costs for 2009 313
Interest cost for 2009 218
Amortisation of actuarial (gains) loss 28
Benefits paid (357)
Recognized defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2010 3,286
Unrecognized actuarial loss as of December 31, 2010 851
Interest rate Beginning of the year 6.5%
Interest rate End of the year 5.8%
Future increase of salaries 5.0%
Expected 2011 service costs 347
Expected 2011 interest costs 224
Amortization of actuarial loss 63
Expected 2011 benefit payments 604

Current service cost, interest cost and amortization of actuarial gains/losses presented under Personnel
expenses (See note 14).
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40.

(d)

(e)

41.

Provisions (continued)

Provisions on constructive obligation

In the course of regular business Bank has to follow certain rules as defined by specific Banking
legislation prevailing in Bulgaria.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the whole remaining amount of provisions on
constructive obligations relates to full compliance with Instructions 1-171 of BNB and Ministry of Internal
Affairs, related to security standards of the premised where safe-deposits boxes are provided. In
December 2010 review of the amount of provisions needed was done and as a result of reduced
expectations for the resources needed, the outstanding amount was adjusted by BGN 416 thousand.

Other provision

Other provisions in the amount of BGN 430 thousand (BGN 338 thousand in 2009) relates to coverage
of claims related to credit cards business as well as other claims.

Other liabilities

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Liabilities to the State budget 4,780 4,135
Liabilities to personnel 20,849 17,757
Liabilities for unused paid leave 6,813 7,052
Dividends 331 196
Incentive plan liabilities 822 980
Other liabilities 32,456 16,404
Total other liabilities 66,051 46,524

Liabilities to the State Budget include current liabilities related to different tax positions of the Bank.

Liability to personnel includes accrued not paid liability to employees with regard to additional
performance payments. The amounts represent Management best estimate for the goals achieved
throughout 2010 and 2009 in accordance with the defined target settings.

Liabilities for unused paid leave represent quantification of Bank’s current liability due to employees for
unutilized current and prior years leave. The amount is equal to the compensation Bank has to pay
should the labour contracts with the employees had been terminated as of December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009, respectively.

As described in note 3 (p) (iii) selected group of Top and Senior Managers are given UniCredito Italiano
stock options and performance shares as part of their remuneration packages. The economic value of
the options and shares is presented as other liability as upon expiring of the vesting period respective
amounts have to be settled in cash. The breakdown of the liabilities by type of instruments is presented
in note 14 above.

63



. . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
l Unlcredlt BUlbank STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010

42.

b)

c)

d)

43.

Equity

Share capital

As of December 31, 2010 share capital comprises of 263,911,174 ordinary shares with nominal value of
BGN 1 each. All shares give equal voting rights to their holders.

As described in 3 (q) (i) in 2010 General Meting of Shareholders of UniCredit Bulbank AD approved
capital increase through cash contributions in total amount of BGN 179,000 thousand comprising of
24,655,650 new ordinary shares with issuing price BGN 7.26 each. The capital increase was effectively
completed and registered in December 2010.

Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves represent allocated profits after taxation into Reserve Fund in accordance with
requirements of the Bulgarian Commercial Act. The share-premium of newly issued ordinary shares are
also allocated into statutory reserves (see 42 a) above)

Retained earnings

Under Retained earnings Bank shows the excess of all reserves, formed out of net profit in prior years
and transformation of revaluation reserves over statutory reserves amount.

Revaluation reserves

Revaluation reserves include such on property as per the allowed fair value model under IAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” as well as reserve out of the fair value change of financial assets
classified as available for sale or derivatives designated as effective hedging instrument in cash flow
hedge relationship all in accordance with IAS 39 “Financial Instruments, Recognition and
Measurement”.

Contingent liabilities

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009
Letters of credit and letters of guarantee 729,562 641,532
Credit commitments 1,121,434 922,835
Total contingent liabilities 1,850,996 1,564,367

Memorandum items

The Bank provides financial guarantees and letters of credit to guarantee the performance of customers
to third parties.

The contractual amounts of financial guarantees and letters of credit are set out in the above table. The
amounts reflected in the table for commitments assume that amounts are fully advanced. The amounts
for guarantees and letters of credit represent the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized if
counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted.

These commitments and contingent liabilities have off balance-sheet credit risk and only fees and
accruals for probable losses are recognized in the statement of financial position until the commitments
are fulfilled or expire. Most of the contingent liabilities and commitments expire without being advanced
in whole or in part.
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43.

(a)

b)

44,

45,

Contingent liabilities (continued)
Memorandum items (continued)

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the Bank has made assessment in compliance with
IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets”. Due to abnormal credit risk related to
certain clients’ exposures, Bank’s Management has evaluated the risk, where it is more probable that
any issued Bank guarantee could lead to an outflow of resources from the Bank (see also Note 40).

Litigation

As of December 31, 2010 there are open litigation proceedings against the Bank. There is significant
uncertainty as to the timing and outcome of such proceedings. Since the ultimate outcome of the claims
against the Bank cannot presently be determined with sufficient reliability, provisions have been
accrued only on cases where sufficient degree of certainty exists. Total of litigation claims provided for
in the financial statements as of December 31, 2010 is in the amount of BGN 7,282 thousand (BGN
10,108 thousand in 2009).

Credit commitments

During the course of normal lending activity the Bank has negotiated with clients different types of credit
facilities including credit lines, overdraft facilities and revolving loans. Contractually the Bank has
committed itself for a certain amount which is at clients’ disposal.

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 the Bank presents committed but unutilized credit
facilities as part of its off-balance sheet positions.

Assets pledged as collateral

In thousands of BGN
2010 2009
Securities pledged for budget holders' account service 265,302 286,515
Securities pledged on REPO deals 27,886 114,321
Securities pledged on other deals 69,171 52,384
Blocked deposit on other deals 471 4
362,830 453,224

Pledged securities include
Assets held for trading 70,355 33,136
Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 11,197 4,136
Available for sale assets 145,007 133,400
Assets held to maturity 107,914 282,548
334,473 453,220

Securities pledged on other deals include those contractually pledged on long-term financing provided
to the Bank by foreign institutions.

Related parties

UniCredit Bulbank AD has a controlling related party relationship with its direct parent company.
Additionally the Bank has relativeness with members of the Managing bodies.

UniCredit Bulbank AD has a related party relationship with its other parent company’s subsidiaries and
with its directors and executive officers.
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45, Related parties (continued)

The related parties’ transactions in terms of statement of financial position items as of December 31,
2010 and Income statement items for the year ended thereafter are as follows:

In thousands of BGN

Assets Liabilities
Financial assets held for trading 8,182
Available for sale investments 2,873
Current accounts and deposits placed 1,052,120
Extended loans 66,757
Other assets 4,030
Financial liabilities held for trading 50,317
Derivatives used for hedging 4,207
Current accounts and deposits taken 2,108,298
Subordinated loans 214,053
Other liabilities 1,801
Total 1,133,962 2,378,676
Guarantees received by the Group 63,134

In thousands of BGN
Income (Expense)

Interest incomes 4,399
Interest expenses (45,152)
Fee and commissions income 2,984
Fee and commissions expenses (21)
Administrative and personnel expenses (5,914)

(43,704)

As of December 31, 2010 the loans extended to key management personnel amount to BGN 23,589
thousand. For the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 the compensation to senior management
personnel amounts to BGN 2,471 thousand.

46. Cash and cash equivalents

In thousands of BGN

2010 2009

Cash in hand 130,625 119,822

Current account with the Central Bank 744,035 712,342

Current accounts with banks 36,344 42,923
Receivables under repurchase agreements 84,038 11,574
Placements with banks with original maturity less than 3 months 1,578,136 1,911,215

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,573,178 2,797,876

Cash and cash equivalent include cash in hand as well as current accounts with Central Bank and other
banks and placement with original maturity up to 3 months.
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47. Leasing

Bank has concluded numerous operating and finance lease agreements to support its daily activity.
Under financial lease contracts Bank acts only as a lessee for acquiring cars and equipment.
Under operational lease contracts Bank acts both as a lessor and lessee in renting office buildings.

(a) Financial lease contracts where the Bank acts as a lessee
In thousands of BGN
Residual maturity Total future NPV of total
minimum lease  future minimum
payment lease payment

2010 2009 2010 2009

Up to one year 598 843 553 795
Between one and five years 741 878 693 827
Total 1,339 1,721 1,246 1,622
(b) Operational lease contracts where the Bank acts as a lessee

In thousands of BGN

Residual maturity Total future

minimum lease

payment

2010 2009

Up to one year 12,307 11,606

Between one and five years 30,048 25,425

Beyond five years 6,718 6,774

Total 49,073 43,805
(c) Operational lease contracts where the Bank acts as a lessor

In thousands of BGN

Residual maturity Total future
minimum lease

payment

2010 2009

Up to one year 290 247
Between one and five years 274 85
Total 564 332

48. Group entities

The direct parent company of UniCredit Bulbank AD is UniCredit Bank Austria AG. As of December 31,
2010 and December 31, 2009 the ultimate parent company is UniCredito Italiano S.p.A.
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